
THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA  
Council Meeting 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

The Council of the Town of Kenneth City will meet at Community Hall, located at 
4600 58th Street North, Kenneth City, Florida to discuss the agenda items of Town 
business listed at the time indicated below. 

A. Call to Order
B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
C. Roll Call
D. Consent Agenda

1. May Meeting Minutes
a. 05/04/2022 Special Workshop Meeting
b. 05/04/2022 Special Council Meeting
c. 05/11/2022 Council Meeting

E. Public Comment (limited to 3 minutes)
Please state your name and address for the record. Public participation is encouraged. If you are addressing the 
Council, step to the podium and state your name and address for the record. Public comments can also be submitted 
by email to the Town Clerk at Town57@kennethcityfl.org, written comments must be received by 4pm on the day 
of the meeting and will be read aloud during the meeting. Please limit your comments to 400 words as the 
comments are limited to three minutes.

F. Action Agenda

1. Interim Town Manager Candidate
• Exhibit 1: Bob Daniels Resume

2. Procurement Ordinance No. 2022-657 SECOND READING
• Exhibit 2: ORDINANCE NO. 2022-657

3. Management Consulting Firms (1. MCF followed by 2.)
a. Department of Management Services Packet

• Exhibit 3 (attachment 1-5)

b. Administrative Assistant Resumes
• Exhibit 4: 10 Applicants

c. Accounting and Finance Specialist
• Exhibit 5: 14 Applicants

d. Imagine That Performance
• Exhibit 6: ITP Presentation
• Exhibit 7: Imagine That Performance Agreement

4. Legal Services Request for Proposal
• Exhibit 8: Email from Attorney Mora
• Exhibit 9: KC Retainer Agreement
• Exhibit 10: KC Town Attorney RFP

6:30pm June 8 ,2022 Community Hall 

mailto:Town57@kennethcityfl.org


 

G.  Department Reports 
 

1.  Public Safety 
a. KCPD stats 
b. Fire Department Report and statistics 

 

2. Public Works Report 
 

3.    Building, Planning and Zoning 
a. KC Building Stats 

 

H. Officer Reports (Manager, Clerk, Attorney) 

I. Mayor/Council Comment 

J. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and 
for such purposes may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal 
is to be based. The law does not require the Town Clerk to transcribe verbatim minutes; therefore, the applicant must make the necessary arrangements with a 
private reporting firm and bear the resulting expense. In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and F.S. 286.26; any person with a disability requiring 
reasonable accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should call 727-498-8948 or fax a written request to 727-498-8841. www.kennethcityfl.org 

http://www.kennethcityfl.org/


THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 
 May 4, 2022 

A. Call to Order

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

C. Roll Call

Present were, Councilmember Roberts, Councilmember Zemaitis, 
Councilmember Noble, Vice Mayor Cummings, Mayor Howell, Town Manager 
Cavalli, Attorney Mora and Town Clerk Ana Cabezas.   

D. Public Comment

Teresa Zemaitis, 5201 57th Street N
Commented on the workshop’s agenda, Imagine That and the Town’s policies
concerning Requests for Proposals.

E. Workshop Discussion
Town Manager Transition, special presentation by Rob Duncan
Rob Duncan from Imagine That Performance facilitated a presentation. Themes
covered were the manager’s resignation, factors that impact recruitment of a new
manager, budget and revenue assessment, recommended path, next actions and
near to mid- and long-term needs.

There was a discussion.

The mayor opened the floor to public comment.

Tim Shoby, Lake Charles Drive
Mr. Shoby commented on procurement processes and recommendations.

Jeff Pfannes, 4494 61st LN N
Thanked Rob Duncan for his presentation and recommended that the Town work
to retain Manager Cavalli.

Teresa Zemaitis, 5201 57th Street N
Commented on Imagine That Performance and the next steps the Town can take.



Ellen Dalvo, 4726 58th Street N 
Asked the Town to work to retain Manager Cavalli, or ask Manager Cavalli to 
procure his successor.  

Sue Wilson, 46th Ave. 
Commented on succession and the budget. 

 Vice Mayor Cummings commented on the things that were said during the 
meeting and stated that he does not know why the Town Manager resigned. 

H. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Mayor Cummings 
Second was made by Councilmember Noble 
All in favor 
Special Workshop was adjourned 8:22pm 

Respectfully submitted by 
Ana Cabezas 

Town Clerk 

Notice: This meeting and all City Council Meetings, Special Workshops, Hearings and 
Committee Meetings are posted in advance on the Town’s letterboards as well as the 
Town’s website, newsletters and Facebook pages.  



 

THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 

Special Council Meeting Minutes 
       May 4, 2022 

 

 

A.  Call to Order 

B.  Public Comment 
There was no public comment 

 
C.  Action Agenda  
  

1. Town Manager 
There was a brief exchange between Attorney Mora and Mayor Howell in which 
Attorney Mora asked the Council Body for direction, following the discussion of the 
workshop. 
 
Council Member Zemaitis stated that she would like to move forward with engaging 
a company to assist the Town with an executive search for a new Town Manager. 
She asked that Manager Cavalli initiate the steps towards procuring said company. 
The attorney stated that consensus direction would be sufficient to move forward 
with this request.   
 
Councilmember Roberts asked Manager Cavalli if he would consider staying, to 
avoid the Town from having to recruit a new Town Manager. Manager Cavalli 
responded that several factors would have to be in place in order for him to 
consider remaining with the Town.  

  
Public Comment 
Teresa Zemaitis, 5201 57th Street N 
Ms. Zemaitis commented on steps the Town could take to start recruitment efforts. 
 
Jeffrey Pfannes, 4494 61st Lane N 
Mr. Pfannes asked the Town to work to retain the employ of Manager Cavalli. 
 
Paul Ashe, 6412 44th Ave N 
Mr. Ashe advised the Town Council to reflect on why the Town Manager wishes to 
leave, rectify those situations and do what it takes to have him stay. Mr. Ashe went 
on to commend the job Manager Cavalli has done during his time in this role.  
 



Council Member Zemaitis spoke in agreement with the recommendations and 
suggested another meeting or workshop to have those conversations would be 
beneficial.  
 
Council Member Cummings stated that he believes better communication would be 
beneficial to all.  
 
Attorney Mora stated, “just to confirm there is a consensus direction from the body 
for staff to investigate the procurement efforts for a firm to conduct management 
recruitment.” The response from the Council body was, yes.  

 
 
2. Town Accountant 
There was a brief discussion regarding recruiting an accountant.  Council Member 
Zemaitis stated that the Town needed to recruit an accountant alongside with their 
manager recruitment efforts. Council Member Noble stated that she believed these 
efforts should wait until the scope of services was better defined. There was a 
discussion between Manager Cavalli and Council regarding accounting software, 
hiring consultants and resources.  
 
The Attorney Mora stated to the Council that while they are the policy making 
body, they are not in a position to be making policy “right now.” He asked that the 
Council let the Officers of the Town know “what personnel you are authorizing to 
exist to move forward.” In addition to recruiting a manager, he asked if they want to 
recruit an accountant. “We want to know from you, what seats do you want us to 
fill?” He asked Council to provide direction regarding the pressing personnel needs 
of the Town. The attorney confirmed that the current, singular directive of the 
Council body has been to find a management recruitment firm. 
 
There was some discussion among the Council. 
 

The mayor opened the floor to public comment. 
 
Ellen Dalvo, 4726 58th St N 
Commented that Manager Cavalli is the best person to know what kind of help he 
would need in the upcoming weeks leading to his exit date. 
 
Cindi Hite, 6514 43rd Ave N 
Commented on the lag between the Manager’s resignation and the council’s efforts 
to respond to the Town’s pressing needs. She encouraged the Council to work 
more collaboratively with Manager Cavalli. 
 
Councilmember Noble requested clarification from Attorney Mora that Manager 
Cavalli has the consensus he needs to initiate the search for executive level 
assistance. Attorney Mora confirmed that there is consensus direction to proceed 
with action items 1 and 2. 



 
3. Code Enforcement 
Councilmember Roberts asked if “two items” was not sufficient for Manager Cavalli 
to have to manage between today and his departure from the Town. There was 
some discussion. The Manager advised the Council to “table” Code Enforcement 
recruitment for now. He stated that pressing code issues will be handled by the 
Town Administration and the Police Department “for now.”  

 
 
H.  Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Vice Mayor Cummings. 
 
Councilmember Zemaitis said she would second the motion and also stated that 
she would like a meeting or the ability to sit down with Manager Cavalli to discuss 
his needs, and to learn what “we can do better” as a Council. Attorney Mora stated, 
“there is nothing in the law that prevents each of you individually from speaking 
with Pete, at any time, one on one.” Attorney Mora stated these conversations 
could happen publicly as well.     
 
Councilmember Zemaitis seconded the motion to adjourn the meeting 
All in favor 
Meeting was adjourned at 9:32pm 

 
 

Respectfully submitted by 
Ana Cabezas 

Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice: This meeting and all City Council Meetings, Special Workshops, Hearings and Committee 
Meetings are posted in advance on the Town’s letterboards as well as the Town’s website, newsletters, 
and Facebook pages.  
 
To access audio recording of the meeting please contact the clerk’s office at town57@kennethcityfl.org. 
A video recording of this meeting can be accessed at: https://youtu.be/_c0_R7l64AA  
 

mailto:town57@kennethcityfl.org
https://youtu.be/_c0_R7l64AA


 

THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 

Council Meeting Minutes 
       May 11, 2022 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

Present were Councilmember Roberts, Councilmember Zemaitis, Councilmember Noble, Vice 
Mayor Cummings, Mayor Howell, Town Manager Cavalli, Attorney Mora and Town Clerk Ana 
Cabezas.  
 

D. Consent Agenda 
April 13, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes 
April 27, 2022 Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Motion to approve consent agenda made by Councilmember Noble.  
Second was offered by Vice Mayor Cummings. 
All in favor 
Motion to approve consent agenda passed 

  
E.  Public Comment 

Make Warner, 6088 44th Ave N 
Commented on garbage collection change and code enforcement issue. 

 
F.  Action Agenda 
 

1. Procurement Rules: Ordinance 2022-657 
Attorney Mora read proposed Ordinance 2022-657 by title only. This was a first reading. There 
was a brief discussion.  
 
The public was invited to comment. There was no public comment.  
 
A motion to approve Ordinance No 2022-657 was made by Councilmember Noble. A second 
was offered by Vice Mayor Cummings.  
 
The motion passed by a roll call vote: 
 
Councilmember Roberts  No 
Councilmember Zemaitis Yes 
Councilmember Noble Yes 
Vice Mayor Cummings Yes 
Mayor Howell  Yes 
 
 



 
2.  Executive Search for a Town Manager 

Attorney Mora provided a summary to the Town Council on the specifics of the Invitation to 
Bid. There was a discussion.  
 
The public was invited to comment. 
 
Teresa Zemaitis, 5201 57th Street N 

 Commented that the Council should not wait to publish the invitation to bid, and that she is 
disappointed in the council for not making the effort to retain Manager Cavalli.  

 
Councilmember Noble said she does not want to move forward on the Invitation to Bid. She 
said she has not had an opportunity to read it and that it is important not to rush into hiring a 
full-time employee. She asked that the council “table the topic.” She stated that the Town could 
hire a consultant to complete the budget.  
 
There was further discussion. Attorney Mora further explained the purpose of the invitation to 
bid, stating that this specific full-time employee is “integral to your form of government.” He 
provided context for the timeline of this invitation to bid given the current climate of the Town 
staffing and directives that were recently given. Attorney Mora advised the council body that 
the invitation to bid contract presented to them is not a contract or an invitation to hire a full-
time employee, it is an invitation to hire an agency that will identify candidates for the Town 
Manager position.  
 
There was a discussion about critical next steps, the importance of initiating the ITB, the 
possibility of hiring an interim Town Manager and the need for “professional help.”  
 
A motion to approve the Invitation to Bid was made by Councilmember Zemaitis. A second 
was offered by Councilmember Roberts.  
 
There was a roll call vote: 
 

Councilmember Roberts   Yes 
Councilmember Zemaitis  Yes 
Councilmember Noble  No 
Vice Mayor Cummings  No 
Mayor Howell   No 
 

The motion failed. 
 
G.  Department Reports 

 
Public Safety 
Chief Vieno announced to the council and residents that the PD is going to be engaged in a 
critical reaccreditation process in the upcoming year and that he is not interested in serving as 
an interim Town Manager.  
Chief Vieno shared April traffic statistics (education, citations and warnings). He reported on 
past and future events. He shared information about hurricane and emergency management 
as well as emergency shelters. 
 
 



 
Fire Department 
Pinellas Park Fire Department, Chief, Brett Schlatterer and Suzanne Boisvert presented. Ms. 
Boisvert shared a presentation on the 2022 Hurricane Season Forecast. Chief Schlatterer 
provided the April Fire Department statistics and general department updates.  
 
 
Public Works 
DPW supervisor Ken Moore, provided updates on the projects they are currently working on 
such as patching roads, responding to resident complaints and concerns. His department has 
been working on repairing and preparing equipment prior to the start of hurricane season.   
 

 
H. Officer Reports 
 Manager Cavalli provided updates on the Town’s finances, the Community Rating System 

(CRS) and recruiting assistance with that project, Pinellas Park’s Building Department 
concluding their partnership with the Town at the end of this calendar year, and some 
infrastructure concerns about unit 12. The Town Clerk and Town Attorney had no report.  

 
I.   Mayor/Council Comments 
 Councilmember Roberts thanked Attorney Mora and Manager Cavalli for the work that they put 

into their reports and the ITB. Councilmember Noble asked Attorney Mora to follow up on his 
offer for an interim Manager. Mayor Howell commented on next steps for recruiting a Town 
Manager, minimizing animosity and working together. A brief discussion ensued.  

  
 
J.  Adjournment 
 Motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Councilmember Roberts 
 Second was made by Councilmember Zemaitis 
 All in favor 
 Meeting was adjourned at 8:40pm 

 
Respectfully submitted by 

Ana Cabezas 
Town Clerk 

 
 
Notice: This meeting and all City Council Meetings, Special Workshops, Hearings and Committee Meetings are posted in 
advance on the Town’s letterboards as well as the Town’s website, newsletters and Facebook pages.   
 
To access audio recording of the meeting please contact the clerk’s office at town57@kennethcityfl.org. 
A video recording of this meeting can be accessed at: https://youtu.be/V5HnxVqW934  

mailto:town57@kennethcityfl.org
https://youtu.be/V5HnxVqW934


ROBERT DANIELS, CM, MPA 
456 Oriole Circle, Jupiter, FL 33458 

Phone: (561) 339 - 4026 | Email: rjdan14@aol.com 

 

Results oriented City Manager with over thirty years progressively responsible experience in 
public administration managing operations in municipal government. Demonstrated proficiency 
in coordinating programs and interfacing with professionals of all levels; coupled with strong 
ability to assess services and support with stakeholders and elected officials. Profound 
knowledge of the government policies and regulations pertaining to budgeting and accounting, 
coupled with an outstanding knowledge of municipal ordinances, Florida laws, and federal 
legislation necessary for the management of a municipal government. Highly skilled in city 
planning, economic development, and personnel management as well as effective 
communication skills.  

 
SKILLS SUMMARY             

• Demonstrated working knowledge in the interpretation of the codes, city policies and 
procedures, and the state and federal laws applicable to Florida local government, including but 
not limited to the Public Records Act, Sunshine Law, Code of Ethics and the statutes governing 
the budgeting and financial operations.  

• Demonstrated ability to delegate responsibilities to the proper department director and provide 
mentoring opportunities.  

• Demonstrated ability to make effectively communicate and make recommendations to the 
Commission and provide feedback on all operations. 

• Deals with residents, businesses, officials and contractors, and employees in a professional, 
tactful, diplomatic, transparent, and honest manner.   

• Oversee the administration of all vendor contracts, interlocal agreements, grant opportunities, 
and development agreements. 

• Oversee the supervision of, and implementation of Emergency Disaster and Hurricane 
Response Plans.  

• Oversight of budget development, appropriations, and budget administration along with 
monitoring the effectiveness of all fiscal operations to ensure expenditures and revenue are 
within projections.   

• Use of cutting-edge technology, internet, cloud-based applications, and software tools. 
• Software: Microsoft Office, Paycom, HRIM, GIS, and Munis. 
• Extensive experience in law enforcement management. 

 
EXPERIENCE             

City Manager — City of Madeira Beach, Florida (2019 − 2022) 
• Oversaw all operations of a barrier island community and increased community involvement.  
• Ensured that all laws, provisions of the charter, and directives of the Board of Commissioners 

were enforced.  
• Offer recommendations to the Board of Commissioners to facilitate a shared vision and assist in 

the decision-making of the Commission.  

mailto:rjdan14@aol.com


Robert Daniels, resume cont. 

• Developed new avenues of communicating with the residents and other stakeholders seeking 
transparency of all operations. 

• Submit regular communications to the Board of Commissioners concerning the operations of 
the City Departments, personnel, and on-going projects.  

• Kept open door communications with Commissioners, residents, employees, and other 
stakeholders. 

• Worked with lobbyists to secure Florida legislative allocations for major projects and local 
community partners to improve operations for the beach communities. 

• Developed transparent code enforcement investigations and utilized a smart phone application 
to improve communications with residents. 

Key Achievements: 
All stakeholders reaped the benefits of a strong economic development program. Just recently, we 
were successful in obtaining legislative allocations of $1.75 million for renovation of our fifty-year-old 
beach groins and $500,000 towards a local roadway project. Successfully completed a $12 Million 
residential roadway rebuild with new storm water systems and water and sewer lines on time and within 
budget. I also successfully negotiated a three-year labor agreement with our firefighters. Our beach 
was chosen by Trip Advisor as the #9 beach in the country thanks to our cleanliness campaign and our 
pro-tourism strategies. We also developed a non-profit organization to seek funding for beautification of 
our parks, beaches, and the city. 
 
Town Manager— Town of Melbourne Beach, FL (2017 − 2019) 

• Direct administration of all departments of the Town except the Town Attorney.  
• Developed community outreach programs to increase citizen involvement in town operations.   
• Worked with a long-standing Sustainability Committee to develop environmental programs and 

recycling kitchen waste into compost. 
• Developing and overseeing the town budget and financial operations, planning and code 

management, personnel administration, facility management, procurement, public works, 
community development, grant administration, building department and public relations. 
Oversight of the volunteer fire department. 

• Developed fund raising programs for park and playground improvements. 
• Worked with local leaders to combat water pollution affecting local canals and waterways. 

Key Achievements: 
• Experience rehabilitating a crumbling stormwater utility system and securing FEMA grant 

funding to assist with the financial commitment.  
• Revamped the code enforcement function creating a better quality of life for the residents.  
• Transformed the police department with the hire of a new police chief, the addition of a school 

resource officer function, and revamping the security functions.  
• Completed a pier restoration project, beach renourishment, and pavilion renovations. 

 
Interim Town Manager — North Bay Village, FL (2010-2015) 
Worked as the Interim City Manager for one year and additionally served as the police chief and acting 
City manager as needed. 

• Managed all city operations to include planning, economic development, building, finance, 
personnel, IT, public works, water and sewer operations, and the police department. 



Robert Daniels, resume cont. 

 
Key Achievements: 

• Calmed labor unrest by successfully negotiating a new labor agreement and instituting a 
labor-management committee. 

• Improved internal and external communications with the City Commission and staff.  
• Initiated a park development project with grant and bond funding. 
• Successfully brought to closure a major main line sewer and beautification project.  
• Developed the City’s Code Enforcement functions with the latest technology. 
• Initiated an Emergency Management Response Plan and responsible for all emergency 

operations. 
• Implementation of security protocols to provide a safer working environment for employees and 

citizens. 
 

Position Held in Law Enforcement 
Chief of Police — North Bay Village, Florida (4 years) 
Chief of Police -- Buckeye Police Department, Buckeye, Arizona (1 years) 
Assistant Chief of Police -- Juno Beach Police Department, Juno Beach, Florida (3 years) 
Interim Chief of Police -- Florida Atlantic University Police Services, Boca Raton, Florida (1 year) 
Boca Raton Police Services Department, Boca Raton, Florida (26 years) retiring as Assist. Chief of 
Police 
 
EDUCATION             

M.A. Public Administration (MPA) 
Florida Atlantic University – Boca Raton, FL 
 
B.A. Business Administration (BBA)      
Florida Atlantic University – Boca Raton, FL 
 
Additional: 
Federal Bureau of Investigation National Academy FBI Training Academy - Quantico, VA 
Post Graduate Studies – Criminal Justice Education, University of Virginia – Quantico, VA 
Certifications: Management Development Certification; Certified Government Financial Manager; 
Florida Executive Development Seminar; Florida Chief’s Executive Seminar Class 29; Certificate in 
Public Records Management, All FEMA required courses and certifications, ICMA Credentialed 
Manager 
 
ACTIVITIES SUMMARY             

• Association of Government Accountants 
• International City Managers Association 
• International Association of Chiefs of Police 
• Florida City County Manager’s Association 
• Florida League of Cities 

• FBI National Academy Alumni Association 
• American College of Forensic Examiners 

International 
• Rotary 

 



Page 1 of 15 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-657 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, 
FLORIDA, CREATING DIVISION 1 OF ARTICLE VII OF 
CHAPTER 2 OF THE TOWN CODE RELATING TO 
PROCUREMENT RULES TO ADD NEW PROVISIONS 
NECESSARY TO FACILITATE EFFICIENT AND 
LEGALLY COMPLIANT PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES; 
MAKING RELATED FINDINGS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, § 5.14 of the Town Charter sets forth the general provisions governing the 
solicitation and procurement of goods and services for the Town; 

WHEREAS, the Town Council possesses the authority to add to and subtract from the 
Town’s Code of Ordinances in a manner consistent with the content of the Town Charter; 

WHEREAS, the town’s professional procurement staff and the Town Attorney have 
advised the Town Council that modern public procurement methods have become more complex 
and, as the Town has grown its procurement rules should be improved to account for the various 
methods of procurement available to the town, and to ensure compliance with statutes applicable 
to municipal procurement; and 

WHEREAS, in light of the foregoing, the Town of Kenneth City Council finds that it is in 
the Town’s best interests to adopt the new and updated procurement regulations set forth in this 
Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Town of Kenneth 
City, Florida, that: 

SECTION 1. The Town Council hereby creates and codifies Chapter 2, Article VII 

(Finance), Division 1 (Procurement Code) within Subpart A of the Town’s General Ordinances, 

which shall read as follows: 



Page 2 of 15 
 

DIVISION 2. – PROCUREMENT CODE 

Sec. 2-401. – Title and purpose.  
 
This division shall be known and may be cited to as the Town of Kenneth City procurement code. 
The purpose of this division is to provide for the fair and equitable treatment of all persons involved 
in public purchasing by the town, to maximize the purchasing value of public funds in 
procurement, and to provide safeguards for maintaining a procurement system of quality and 
integrity. 
 
Sec. 2-402. – Application. 
 
(a) This division applies to solicitations and contracts entered into for the purchase of goods, 
services, and construction. Any current or subsequent amendment shall only apply to solicitations 
and contracts issued and entered into by the town after the effective date of this division, unless 
the parties agree to its application to solicitations and contracts issued and entered into prior to the 
effective date. 
 
(b) This division is to be construed in a manner consistent with any applicable provision of the 
general and special laws of the State of Florida and shall not apply to the extent any provision is 
in conflict therewith, provided, however, the provisions of this division may supersede such 
general or special law where the general or special law permits such an application or 
interpretation. 
 
Sec. 2-403. – Exclusions from this division. 
 
This division does not govern procurement of the following: 
 
(a) Grants and gifts. This division shall not apply to purchases made with the proceeds from any 
grant, gift, bequest, or donation to the extent the application of this division would conflict with 
the requirements, conditions, or limitations attached to the grant, gift, bequest, or donation. 
 
(b) Lease or purchase of real property. This division shall not apply to the acquisition of real 
property by lease, license or purchase, unless the council determines to acquire such interest by a 
competitive solicitation. 
 
(c) Legal services. This division shall not apply to retaining services of law firms or other outside 
counsel for any reason, nor to expert witnesses, appraisal services, trial consultants or similar 
persons of firms deemed by the town council as necessary to address the town’s legal needs. Such 
firms or persons shall be selected by the town council or, when authorized by council, the town 
attorney. 
 
(d) Non-profit funding agreements. Funds expended by the town in the form of grants to non-profit 
entities performing economic development, social services, or similar public purposes. 
 



Page 3 of 15 
 

(e) Insurance policies. This division shall not apply to the purchase of insurance policies to protect 
the property and other interests of the town. 
 
(f) Where specified by general law, ordinance or policies. This division shall not apply to any 
purchase governed by explicit provisions of general law or other town ordinance or council 
policies unless the solicitation indicates the applicability of this division, and this division shall 
apply only to the extent set out in the solicitation. 
 
(g) Town bonds. This division shall not apply to professional services required for the issuance of 
town bonds and town investments related thereto. 
 
(h) Dues, memberships and subscriptions. This division shall not apply to the payment of dues for 
memberships in professional or trade organizations, professional licenses, and trade publications 
or subscriptions. 
 
(i) Sale or conveyance of town owned real property. This division shall not apply to the sale, 
conveyance or other disposition of real property owned by the town or any interest therein. 
 
(j) Legal advertisements and postage. This division shall not apply to the town’s acquisition of 
legal advertisements, nor to the cost of postage, shipping or courier services. 
 
(k) Lobbying services. This division shall not apply to the town’s acquisition of professional 
lobbyist services. 
 
(l) Title abstracts and title insurance. This division shall not apply to funds expended for real 
property title abstracts or title insurance. 
 
(m) Utilities. This division shall not apply to the town’s acquisition of any utility, including 
electricity, gas, and communications services. 
 
(n) Professional development. This division shall not apply to costs incurred in authorized 
professional development activities including registration, lodging, travel and meal costs to attend 
trade or professional seminars, trainings and conferences. 
 
(o) Items for resale. This division shall not apply to the acquisition of items purchased for resale 
to the public. 
 
(p) Instructional materials. This division shall not apply to the acquisition of instructional 
materials or copyrighted materials being purchased from the owner of the copyright. 
 
(q) Town sponsored events. This division shall not apply to expenditures related to town sponsored 
events, including venue and amusement rentals, entertainment and food. 
 
(r) Service/maintenance agreements. Agreements to maintain or service equipment or software 
previously acquired by the town are not covered by this division. 
 



Page 4 of 15 
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, with the exception of the acquisition of utility services with rates 
established by the Florida Public Service Commission, a contract for the purchase of commodities 
or services exempted in this section must be approved by the council if the contract requires the 
expenditure of more than $25,000. 
 
Sec. 2-404. – Small dollar purchases. 
 
Purchases of commodities or services with an aggregate annual cost of less than $2,500.00 may be 
made directly by the acquiring department.  For purchases of commodities or services with an 
aggregate annual cost of mor than $2,500, but less than $5,000, the department head shall first 
secure two or more written price quotes to be submitted with the requisition, before a purchase 
order is issued. To the extent the services being acquired may generate a significant risk of loss, 
the acquiring department shall first consult with the town manager or designee regarding the need 
to require the vendor to provide enhanced insurance coverage. 
 
Sec. 2-405. – Intermediate purchases. 
 
Purchases of commodities or services with an aggregate annual cost between $5,000.00 and 
$10,000.00 will be acquired only after obtaining a minimum of three (3) written quotes, telephone 
quotes or proposals. After quotes are received, purchase orders will be issued to the responsive, 
responsible vendor which has quoted the most acceptable products or services at the lowest cost. 
 
Sec. 2-406. – Purchases requiring formal solicitation. 
 
Purchases of commodities or services with an aggregate annual cost exceeding $10,000.00 will be 
performed by the use of a formal invitation to bid, request for proposals, invitation to negotiate or 
request for qualifications, depending on the desired commodity or service. Solicitations in this 
category shall be published as broadly as practicable to obtain robust competitive responses, to 
include online solicitation distribution providers, the town’s website, newspaper or trade 
publication advertisements, and directly sending the solicitation to known vendors. 
 
Sec. 2-407. – Minimum solicitation requirements. 
 
Solicitations for sealed bids shall include specifications and all contractual terms and conditions 
applicable to the procurement, shall incorporate, directly or by reference to, the standards and 
conditions upon which the bids will be evaluated and selected, and, in solicitations for other than 
sealed bids, shall include the manner in which negotiations shall be conducted. 
 
Sec. 2-408. – Cancellation of solicitations. 
 
An invitation for bids, a request for proposals, or other solicitation may be canceled, or any or all 
bids, proposals or offers may be rejected in whole or in part when it is determined to be in the best 
interests of the town. The reasons therefor shall be made part of the town’s files. Each solicitation 
issued by the town shall state that the solicitation may be canceled and that any bid, proposal, or 
offer may be rejected in whole or in part for good cause when in the best interest of the town. 
Notice of cancellation shall be published or posted in the same manner as notice of the solicitation. 



Page 5 of 15 
 

The notice shall identify the solicitation, explain the reason for cancellation and, where 
appropriate, explain that an opportunity will be given to compete on any resolicitation or any future 
procurements of similar items. 
 
Sec. 2-409. – Source selection and waiver of competition. 
 
(a) The methods and policies governing the selection of sources shall be those established in this 
division, or by administrative procedures and standards adopted by the town council, and may 
include, but shall not be limited to, competitive sealed bids, proposals, requests for qualifications, 
invitations to negotiate, proposals submitted for competitive negotiation, proposals for designated 
professional services, noncompetitive purchases, purchases with limited competition, emergency 
purchases, sole source purchases, piggyback and cooperative purchases, and any adopted 
exceptions to the competitive selection procedure. 
 
(b) Where not otherwise prohibited by law, the town council is authorized to provide for the limited 
or complete waiver of competitive source selection policies and procedures upon a determination 
that the likely, non-speculative cost of competitive purchasing would exceed any potential savings 
and benefit to the town, or upon a determination that the acquisition of the goods or services should 
be provided by a unique source or provider based upon particular skills and expertise. Waivers 
may also be authorized by the town council for any purchase where emergency conditions or 
urgent demands for commodities or services render competitive source selection policies an 
obstacle to the timely fulfillment of the Town’s ordinary functions and duties. Recommendations 
to the town council for all such determinations shall be made in writing. In the event emergency 
conditions prohibit the convening of the town council to grant a waiver of competition and 
compliance with normal procurement procedures, the town manager is authorized to approve of 
such a waiver. Procurement activities which otherwise would have required town council approval 
must be ratified by the council at its first regular meeting after the emergency condition has ceased. 
 
Sec. 2-410. – Construction contracts. 
 
(a) If a contract for construction of buildings or infrastructure is estimated, in accordance with 
generally accepted cost accounting principles, to cost more than the threshold amounts set forth in 
Florida Statutes § 255.20, such contract shall be competitively awarded to a licensed contractor 
fully legally authorized to conduct business in Florida by use of the competitive solicitation rules 
set forth in that statute. 
 
(b) The selection procedures shall be consistent with this division and policies and procedures 
adopted by the town council. In addition to such other solicitation publication methods used by the 
town, construction projects projected to cost more than $200,000 must be advertised in the manner 
set forth in Florida Statutes § 255.0525(2)-(5). 
 
(c) Projects shall not be divided so as to evade the threshold amounts listed in Florida Statutes § 
255.20. Unless otherwise defined by law, as used in that subsection, the term “project” shall not 
include those portions of multiyear capital improvement projects not funded beyond the current 
fiscal year. The term shall also not include any series of construction activities on a new or existing 
town facility which, if aggregated, would exceed the threshold amounts, but which were not 



Page 6 of 15 
 

undertaken contemporaneously with each other, were not part of an overall coordinated 
construction or renovation effort, and which were not performed under the same construction 
permit. 
 
Sec. 2-411. – Certain professional services. 
 
(a) Unless prevented from doing so based on a valid public emergency, when the town procures 
architecture, professional engineering, landscape architecture, or registered surveying and 
mapping services, it shall, when such services must be procured for a project, the basic construction 
cost of which is estimated by the town to exceed the category five threshold amount, or for a 
planning or study activity when the fee for professional services exceeds the threshold amount 
provided in category two, as those categories are set forth in Florida Statutes § 287.017, engage in 
the competitive solicitation process set forth in Florida Statutes § 287.055. 
 
(b) Nothing in subsection (a) above shall be construed to prohibit a continuing contract, as defined 
by Florida Statutes § 287.055(2)(g), between an architecture, professional engineering, landscape 
architecture, or registered surveying and mapping services firm and the town. 
 
Sec. 2-412. – Design-build procedures. 
 
(a) Public announcement. The town shall publicly advertise in a uniform and consistent manner 
on each occasion when design-build services are required except in cases of public emergencies 
as declared by the town council. The advertisement shall include a general description of the 
project and shall indicate how, and the time within which, interested design-build firms may apply 
for consideration. 

 
(b) Legal qualification. Any firm or individual desiring to provide design-build services to the 
town must first be determined legally qualified. To be legally qualified: 

 
(1) Firms must be properly certified to engage in contracting through a certified or 
registered general contractor or a certified or registered building contractor as the 
qualifying agent; 

 
(2) Firms must be properly certified to practice or to offer to practice engineering, 
architecture, or landscape architecture; and 

 
(3) The firm shall be duly qualified to perform its proposed service under any other 
applicable law. 
 

(c) Selection committee. A selection committee appointed by the town manager and including the 
town manager, or designee, shall be used to evaluate and rank the design-build firms and their 
responses for recommendation to the town council. 

 
(d) Solicitation. The town manager or the town manager's designee shall develop a request for 
proposals (RFP) to solicit proposals from interested, qualified design-build firms. Except as 



Page 7 of 15 
 

otherwise provided in Florida Statutes § 287.055(9)(c), with the use of a qualifications-based 
selection process, the RFP shall contain as a minimum the following: 

 
(1) The design criteria package defined in Florida Statutes § 287.055(2)(j). 

 
(2) The criteria, procedures, and standards for the evaluation of design-build contract 
proposals, based on price, technical and design aspects of the public construction project, 
weighted for the subject. 

 
(3) Requirements for determining qualifications of firms proposing, such as license, list of 
subcontractors, architect and engineer, and references. 

 
(4) Terms and conditions of proposed agreement. 

 
(5) Other items as required by procedures, laws, ordinances, or prevailing circumstances. 
 

(e) Selection. 
 
(1) All information required by the RFP shall be submitted in a sealed manner (which may 
include sealed envelope if the submission is required to be in that form or via an electronic 
proposal submission system if the town requires submission in that manner). Except as 
otherwise provided in Florida Statutes § 287.055(9)(c), with the use of a qualifications-
based selection process, all proposed designs and price proposals shall be submitted 
separately via the same sealed submission process and which will be opened and 
considered by the selection committee for shortlisted firms only. 

 
(2) The selection committee shall review all proposals (except the separately-submitted 
proposed designs and price proposals) and shall create a shortlist of no less than three 
design-build firms as the most qualified, based on the qualifications, availability, and past 
work of the firms, including the partners or members thereof. In evaluating the proposals 
and preparing the shortlist, the committee shall consult with the design criteria professional 
concerning the evaluation of the responses submitted by the design-build firms. Once the 
committee has shortlisted, except as otherwise provided in Florida Statutes § 287.055(9)(c), 
with the use of a qualifications-based selection process, the committee shall open the 
separate envelopes containing the proposed design solutions and the price submitted by the 
shortlisted firms. The committee shall then rank the shortlisted firms based upon the 
evaluation criteria and procedures set forth within the request for proposal. The committee 
may, if necessary, require verbal presentations from all firms in order that the qualifications 
and/or proposals may be clarified. 

 
(3) After the committee has ranked the shortlisted firms based upon the award criteria set 
forth within the request for proposal, the ranking shall be presented to the town council 
which may approve, disapprove or request modifications to the recommended rankings be 
brought back at a subsequent meeting. Following the ranking by the town council, the 
town’s procurement staff (assisted as needed by relevant town staff and professional 
consultants) shall attempt to negotiate a contract within the parameters of the design criteria 



Page 8 of 15 
 

package or the results of the qualifications-based selection process and in accordance with 
town council ranking. 
 

(f) Contract. 
 
(1) Under the oversight of the town manager, the town’s procurement staff (assisted as 
needed by relevant town staff and professional consultants) shall negotiate a design-build 
contract at a price which the town manager determines is fair, competitive and reasonable. 
If the town is unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the first ranked firm, then it 
shall formally terminate negotiations with such firm and then undertake negotiations with 
the second ranked firm and shall continue this process until a satisfactory contract is 
negotiated. 

 
(2) The contract negotiated by the staff shall be submitted to the town council for 
consideration and approval. 
 

(g) Public emergencies. If a public emergency is declared by the town council and a design-build 
procurement must proceed during such emergency, a negotiating committee may be formed by the 
town manager and authorized to negotiate with the best qualified design-build firm available at 
that time for the design and construction of a capital project. To the extent practical, the town shall 
solicit letters of interest in order to determine the best qualified design-build firm available at the 
time. The contract negotiated by such committee shall be subject to the approval of the town 
council. 

 
(h)  Conflict between procedure and law. In the event Florida Statutes § 287.055 is subsequently 
amended such that its requirements conflict with the provisions of this procedure, the provisions 
of the statute shall prevail and the town manager shall make such recommendations for revision to 
these procedures as to conform them to the law. 
 
Sec. 2-413. – Sole source procurement. 
 
(a) Commodities or contractual services. Commodities or contractual services available only from 
a single source may be excepted from any otherwise applicable solicitation requirements provided 
in this code. When the town believes that desired commodities or contractual services are available 
only from a single source, the purchasing agent shall electronically post a description of the 
commodities or contractual services sought for a period of at least five (5) business days. The 
description must include a request that prospective vendors provide information regarding their 
ability to supply the commodities or contractual services described. Posting shall not be required 
for desired small dollar commodities or contractual services. If it is determined in writing by the 
purchasing agent after reviewing all relevant information, including information received from 
prospective vendors as a result of a required posting, that the commodities or contractual services 
are in fact available only from a single source, the town may enter into a sole source agreement. 
 
(b) Construction materials. In any case where the town seeks to purchase materials for the 
construction, modification, alteration, or repair of any town-owned facility from a sole source, the 
town council must first make the written findings required by Florida Statutes § 255.04. 



Page 9 of 15 
 

Sec. 2-414. – Cooperative procurement, piggybacking. 
 
(a) Cooperative procurement. Unless otherwise prohibited by law or grant agreement terms, the 
purchasing agent is authorized to negotiate with other public procurement officials for the conduct 
of a joint procurement on behalf of each participating public agency where, in the judgment of the 
town manager, doing so would leverage the benefits of volume purchases, create clear delivery 
and/or supply chain advantages, and/or create a demonstrable and substantial reduction of 
administrative time and expense. Examples of cooperative procurement events can include joint 
solicitations or use of a third-party aggregator or broker. 
 
(b) Piggybacking. 
 

(1) In any agreement for the acquisition of goods or services between the town and a vendor 
which has resulted from a competitive solicitation process, the purchasing agent is 
authorized to include a term authorizing the agreement to be utilized by other public 
agencies to acquire the same goods or services. 

 
(2) The purchasing agent is authorized to acquire goods or services by use of an existing 

agreement between a vendor and another public agency where such agreement has resulted 
from a competitive solicitation process. Purchases made in this manner should not 
substantially differ in specification, scope, quality or price from the terms of the initial 
agreement. The piggybacking agreement must be consistent with the parameters, 
requirements and restrictions of the initial agreement. 

 
Sec. 2-415. – Best value procurement. 
 
Unless otherwise prohibited by law, in addition to soliciting commodities or services based on a 
lowest responsive responsible bidder standard, the purchasing agent is authorized to conduct a 
solicitation based on best value. The value of procured commodities or services is generally 
determined by a comparison of costs and benefits. These include comparison of all the benefits 
from what the town receives and how it uses what it receives, against the costs to purchase, use, 
and where relevant dispose of it. Value includes the costs and resources necessary to conduct the 
procurement, purchase price, fiscal tracking and processing costs, storage, maintenance and other 
operational costs, costs for needed training and special insurance costs. The factors to be 
considered and statement of who will be evaluating the factors shall be included or referenced in 
any solicitation issued using the best value procurement method. 
 
Sec. 2-416. – Public records compliance. 
 
Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 119.0701, in any agreement entered into by the town wherein 
the contractor is acting on behalf of the town, the contractor must: 
 
(a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the town 
in order to perform the service. 
 



Page 10 of 15 
 

(b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the town 
would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Florida Statutes, 
Chapter 119 or as otherwise provided by law. 
 
(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 
 
(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the town all public 
records in possession of contractor upon termination of the agreement and destroy any duplicate 
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the town in a format that is 
compatible with the town’s information technology systems. 
 
Sec. 2-417. – Trade secrets. 
 
(a) Florida law provides that trade secret information, as defined in Florida Statutes § 
812.081(1)(c), is confidential and exempt from public records disclosure. 
 
(b) Upon receipt of a response to a procurement solicitation, the town will not be aware that a bid, 
proposal, or other response contains such information. Therefore, bidders, proposers or other 
persons or entities responding to town solicitations must specifically and clearly identify all 
portions of their responses which are believed to be a trade secret, as defined by the law, and must, 
as to each such designation, provide the basis upon which the designated information is a trade 
secret. The mere designation of an entire submission as “confidential” will be insufficient to 
comply with this requirement. Absent some unusual justification, a bidder’s or proposer’s contract 
price shall not constitute a trade secret. 
 
(c) While the town will, to the extent possible, cooperate in any court action a bidder, proposer or 
responder may bring against any third-party requesting to inspect and copy portions of a response 
asserted to be a trade secret, if a bidder, proposer or responder fails, prior to the submission of their 
materials to the town, to specifically and clearly designate information therein as a trade secret and 
to provide the supporting explanation for the designation, the right to assert the exemption may be 
lost, and the information may be subject to inspection and copying as otherwise provided for under 
Florida’s Public Records Act. 
 
(d) In the event any record designated as a trade secret is requested under the Act, procurement 
staff will consult with the town’s legal counsel and, if the town’s legal counsel agrees with the 
designation, the town will assert the exemption and redact the relevant materials. If the town’s 
legal counsel disagrees with the designation, town staff will inform the bidder, proposer or 
responder and that person or entity may file an injunctive or declaratory judgment action and seek 
such emergency orders as desired to protect the information. 
 
  



Page 11 of 15 
 

Sec. 2-418. – Unauthorized purchases, ethical conduct, sanctions. 
 
(a) Prohibition. Except as provided in this division, it shall be a violation of this division for any 
town officer, employee, or other person, to knowingly and willingly order the purchase of any 
goods, or make any contract for goods or services, sell, trade or dispose of material within the 
purview of this division in the name of or on behalf of the town, except as provided by policies of 
the town council, and the town shall not be bound by any purchase order or contract made contrary 
to the provisions herein. 
 
(b) Ethical conduct and sanctions. In addition to any sanctions provided for in the town’s personnel 
policies or sections of this code, any town employee who violates subsection (a) above, or any 
statute concerning ethical conduct in procurement may, when found by the town manager to have 
committed such violation, be required to forfeit all or any part of any accrued leave balances he/she 
may otherwise have as of the date the violation is confirmed by the town manager. In determining 
whether such forfeiture shall be required, the town manager shall consider the nature and severity 
of the offense, the relative financial or legal harm to the town, the employee’s prior disciplinary 
record and whether the employee was in a managerial or special trust position. 
 
Sec. 2-419. – Conflicts of interest. 
 
(a) Prohibiting contracts where conflicts are found to exist. The town shall not engage in contracts 
with consultants or professionals whose prior record, work history and experience indicate ongoing 
business relationships that may be substantially in conflict with the duties and services that will be 
required by the town. 
 
(b) Standards and regulations for the determination of potential conflicting contractual 
obligations. The town manager or designee shall develop standards and regulations for the 
prospective determination of potential conflicting contractual obligations that may impair the 
performance of the professionals or consultants solicited by the town. The standards and 
regulations shall set forth appropriate requirements based upon the nature and scope of the services 
that are to be procured and shall be narrowly tailored so as to not unduly restrict competition, while 
assuring the town of undivided loyalty and services of the highest quality. The standards and 
regulations may require, but shall not be limited to, the inclusion of the following in a request for 
proposals, invitation for bids, announcement or other solicitation or contract for professional or 
consulting services: 
 

(1) An affidavit providing that the professional or consultant is not currently engaged or will 
not become engaged in any obligations, undertakings or contracts that will require the 
professional to maintain an adversarial role against the town or that will impair or influence 
the advice or recommendations provided to the town; 

 
(2) The disclosure of all potentially conflicting contractual relationships and the full disclosure 

of contractual relationships deemed to raise a serious question of conflicts. 
 
(c) Consequences for violation of ethical standards. In addition to any other penalty or 
consequence provided for in law or this code, any professional or consultant submitting false 



Page 12 of 15 
 

information to or on behalf of the town, disclosing or releasing information concerning an actual 
or planned procurement activity which information is deemed confidential or is otherwise not 
known to the general public or otherwise repeatedly failing to comply with the town’s ethical 
standards and regulations shall be deemed to be in violation of this code and shall be subject to 
prosecution, state ethics complaints, reporting to professional or licensing authorities, contract 
cancellation, suspension or debarment, or any combination thereof, as the town deems appropriate. 
 
(d) Professional and consultant defined. Professional or consultant as used in this section shall be 
deemed to include those contractors who, as individuals or duly organized business entities, have 
been or will be retained by the town for the purpose of providing recommendations or advice 
related to planning level or policy level decisions, or who will be engaged in the collection of data 
or research that will provide the basis for such decisions or future plans and actions of the town, 
as well as those who will be retained to supervise and monitor the performance of contractors or 
subcontractors of any nature. 
 
Sec. 2-420. – Lobbying limitations. 
 
After the issuance of any solicitation, or during renegotiation of an existing contract, no 
prospective offerors or their agents, representatives or persons acting at the request of such offerors 
shall contact, communicate with, or discuss any matter relating to the solicitation or the 
renegotiation with any town officers, agents or employees other than the designated purchasing 
agent, unless otherwise provided for in the solicitation or otherwise directed by the purchasing 
agent. This prohibition includes copying such persons on written communications with the 
purchasing agent, but does not apply to presentations made to evaluation committees or at a town 
council meeting where the council is considering approval of a proposed contract, and ends upon 
execution of the final contract or when the solicitation has been canceled or the renegotiation 
efforts are terminated. Renegotiation will be deemed to have commenced upon vote of the council 
directing renegotiation or written notice from the purchasing agent to the existing contractor 
instituting a renegotiation process. Failure to adhere to this section will result in the offender’s bid 
or proposal being disqualified from further consideration. 
 
Sec. 2-421. – Prohibition against award to certain persons or entities. 
 
No person or business entity shall be awarded a contract by the town for the provision of 
commodities or services if that person or entity: 
 
(a) Has been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe a public officer or employee of the town, 
the State of Florida, or any other public entity, including but not limited to the Government of the 
United States, any state, or any local government authority in the United States, in that officer’s or 
employee’s official capacity; or 
 
(b) Has been convicted of a conspiracy or collusion among prospective offerors in restraint of 
freedom of competition, by agreement to offer a fixed price, or otherwise; or 
 



Page 13 of 15 
 

(c) Has been convicted of a violation of an environmental law that, in the reasonable opinion of 
the town manager, establishes reasonable grounds to believe the person or business entity will not 
conduct business in a responsible manner; or 
 
(d) Has made an admission of guilt of such conduct described in subsections (a), (b) or (c) above, 
which is a matter of record, but has not been prosecuted for such conduct, or has made an admission 
of guilt of such conduct, which is a matter of record, pursuant to formal prosecution. 
 
Sec. 2-422. – Protests. 
 
(a) Purpose and intent. The purpose of this section is to provide an expedient administrative 

remedy for those participating in the town’s procurement process. The proceedings under this 
section are not intended to be, and shall not be interpreted as judicial or quasi-judicial, unless 
otherwise clearly specified. It is not the intent of the town to provide any rights to protesters 
not otherwise required by law. Rather, the town’s intent in creating a process for administrative 
review of solicitation award protests is to allow for errors in the solicitation process to be raised 
for the benefit of the taxpayers. Successful participation in any protest review does not ensure 
an award of a contract, and the town expressly reserves all rights it has under law. 

 
(b) Opportunity to protest. Any actual bidder, proposer, or contractor who is aggrieved in 

connection with the notice of intent to award a contract (protestor), where such grievance is 
asserted to be the result of a violation of the requirements of this procurement code or any 
applicable provision of law by the officers, agents, or employees of the town, may file a protest 
to the procurement agent. 

 
(c) Protest procedure and requirements. 
 

(1) The protest shall be made in writing and filed with the procurement division by 4:00 
p.m. on the fifth business day following the date of the electronic posting of the notice 
of intent to award. A protest is considered filed upon receipt by the procurement office. 
Failure to file a written protest within the time period specified shall constitute a waiver 
of the right to protest. 

 
(2) The written protest shall identify the protesting party and the solicitation involved, 

including a statement of the grounds on which the protest is based and the applicable 
statutes, laws, ordinances or other legal authorities which the protestor deems 
applicable to the grounds for the protest. 

 
(3) The protest shall not include challenges to the solicitation requirements, chosen 

procurement method, the evaluation criteria, the relative weight of the evaluation 
criteria, the formula specified for assigning points to the evaluation criteria in its 
protest, or the protester’s opinion regarding its qualifications or the qualifications of 
other responding vendors. 

 



Page 14 of 15 
 

(4) The procurement process shall not be stayed during the protest process unless the 
procurement agent, in his or her discretion, deems it to be in the best interests of the 
town to stay the process. 

 
(d) Authority to resolve protests. The procurement agent shall have the authority to settle and 

resolve a protest concerning the intended award of a contract. The procurement agent shall 
promptly investigate the protest and issue a written decision within thirty (30) days of the date 
the protest is received. 

 
(e) Review of the procurement agent’s protest decision. 
 

(1) Following the procurement agent’s written decision on the protest, protestor may file a 
request for a review of the procurement agent’s decision with the town manager. The 
request for review shall be made in writing and filed with the procurement office by 
4:00 p.m. on the fifth business day following notification of the procurement agent’s 
decision. 

 
(2) The town manager shall issue a written decision within thirty (30) days of the date the 

request for review is received. 
 
(f) Final decision. The decision of the town manager shall be final and conclusive as to the protest. 
 
(g) Protest bond or security. The town council may, by separate resolution, establish a requirement 

for a protest bond. If a protest bond is required, the written protest must be accompanied by a 
security in the form of a protest bond (in a form and with such terms as approved by the town 
attorney) or cash in the amount set by the council. If the town manager determines that the 
protest does not require reversal of the town’s initial decision, the town shall be entitled to 
recover the amount of the protest bond or security. 

 
SECTION 2. For purposes of codification of any existing section of the Town of Kenneth 

City Code herein amended, words underlined represent additions to original text, words stricken 

are deletions from the original text, and words neither underlined nor stricken remain unchanged. 

SECTION 3. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, provision or word of this 

Ordinance is held unconstitutional or otherwise legally invalid, same shall be severable and the 

remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected by such invalidity, such that any remainder of 

the Ordinance shall withstand any severed provision, as the town Council would have adopted the 

Ordinance and its regulatory scheme even absent the invalid part. 



Page 15 of 15 
 

 SECTION 4. The Codifier shall codify the substantive amendments to the Town of 

Kenneth City Code contained in Section 1 of this Ordinance as provided for therein, and shall not 

codify the exordial clauses nor any other sections not designated for codification. 

 SECTION 5. Pursuant to Florida Statutes § 166.041(4), this Ordinance shall take effect 

immediately upon adoption. 

ADOPTED ON FIRST READING on the ___ day of ____________________, 2022, by 

the Town of Kenneth City Council. 

 ADOPTED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING on the ___ day of 

____________________, 2022, by the Town of Kenneth City Council. 

 
                        ____________________________________ 

    Robert Howell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Ana Cabezas, Town Clerk 







TO:  Mayor Robert Howell and Council 
FROM:  Peter Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  June 3, 2022 
RE:  Agreement for Professional Municipal Management and Executive Services 

 

 

SUMMARY 

The Town is seeking full-service management consulting support to assist the Town through the current 
transition to leadership. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Attached are two options.  One is the Agreement for Professional Municipal Management and Executive 
Services submitted by Imagine that Performance, LLC.  The second is to go through and RFP process as 
described in the attached memo under the title of DMS Management Consulting Firms. 

 

CONCLUSION 

Staff respectfully requests direction from council on which option they choose, if any, to move forward 
with the selection of a firm to provide Management Consulting and Operations Support Services. 

 



TO:  Mayor Robert Howell and Council 
FROM:  Peter Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  May 31, 2022 
RE:  Florida DMS | Management Consultants 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

The Town’s current Financial Procedures Policies require that expenditures over $10,000.00 be 
authorized by Town Council after the issuance of a request for proposal or bid and the receipt of sealed 
bids or proposals.   

This issue may be moot in some respects, following the approval of the second reading of Procurement 
Ordinance No. 2022-657, that was presented by Attorney Mora at the May Council Meeting.  However, 
Town Management feels it is wise to present council with options related to the selection of a full-
service Management Consulting Firm and to show what is available on the marketplace. 

Specifically, the current Financial Procedures Section 5.14 states “In working within the confines of 
Article V-Financial Procedures Section 5.14 – Price Quotes; sealed bids; exceptions Line Item C – 
“Expenditures in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00).  The approval of town council shall be 
required to authorize and expenditure in excess of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) for goods, 
materials, equipment or services after the issuance of a request for proposal or bid and the receipt of 
sealed bids or proposals, which shall be publicly opened in a manner set forth in an administrative policy 
established by the town manager for bidding expenditures in excess of ten thousand dollars 
($10,000.00).” 

The State of Florida Department of Management Consulting Services – State Term Contract 80101500-
20-1 effective from 3/1/2021 through 2/29/2024, has nearly 60 Management Consulting Firms 
Identified.  The list of contractors, pricing, how to use this contract, contractor by service and job 
titles/duties are all attached for Council’s review. – For additional references, please visit: 
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreeme
nts/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services  

Several of these management consulting firms have a focus on General Management, 
Accounting/Finance, and Technology foci. 

Examples of general management firms include but are not limited to Accenture, LLP, Transpro 
Consulting and MGT of American Consulting, LLC. 

Examples of accounting/finance include but are not limited to Deloitte Consulting, LLP, Ernst & 
Young US, LLP, Cost Management, Inc. 

Examples of technology consultants include Meridian Partners, Advanced Systems Design and 
Atkins. 

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreements/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreements/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services


This agenda item is being presented to council to aid in the selection of a Full-Service Management 
Consultant. 

Town Management found that the State of Florida has nearly sixty (60) Management Consultant Firms 
identified.  The list of these firms is attached for Council’s Review. 

This state term contract provides management consulting services at an hourly rate. Pricing is provided 
for five job titles: Principal Consultant, Senior Consultant, Consultant, Junior Consultant, and Program 
and Administrative Support. The following services are available under this contract: 

• Consulting on Management Strategy 
• Project Management 
• Program Research, Planning, and Evaluations 
• Provision of Studies, Analyses, Scenarios, and Reports relating to a Customer’s mission-oriented 

business programs or initiatives 
• Executive/Management Coaching Services 
• Customized Training as needed to achieve a Management Consulting Objective 
• Assistance with Policy and Regulation Development 
• Assistance with Process and Productivity Improvement 
• Expert Witness Services in Support of Litigation, Claims, or Other Formal Cases Relating to 

Management Consulting 
• Advisory and Assistance Services Relating to a Customer’s Mission-Oriented Business Programs 

or Initiatives 
• Systems Alignment and Consolidation 
• Comprehensive Grants Management Services Related to the Stafford Act and other related State 

and Federal Grant Programs 
 

Please note that the Town, if the Town chooses to go this route, it would need to go through a 
procurement process that will likely take 45 days.  As you know a scope has to be developed and 
advertised.  Submissions will also need to be evaluated by a Town Manager (or Interim) and 
presented to Council as per applicable procurement policies. 

 

 



Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1) 

Job Titles and Duties 

 

This document describes the responsibilities of the personnel provided by the Contractor, in 

accordance with the terms of the Contract, who are used to provide Customers with services 

pursuant to the Customer SOW set forth in the Customer’s PO (Customers may supplement these 

duties in their Customer SOWs provided the duties do not exceed or conflict with the Contract). 

 

1. Principal Consultant: A minimum of ten (10) years’ experience in duties associated with 

MCS is required for Principal Consultant positions. The functional responsibilities of this 

position may include, but are not limited to: 

 

• Providing executive-level consultation services to the Customer 

• Providing senior-level interface with the Customer and managing daily operations 

• Ensuring the timely performance and completion of all obligations under the PO 

• Organizing and directing the overall performance of the Customer PO  

• Possessing the authority to make binding decisions on behalf of the Contractor 

• Formulating organizational strategy and directing major strategic initiatives  

• Ensuring that goals and objectives are accomplished within budgetary parameters 

• Developing and maintaining Customer relationships  

• Assisting on large, complex or multi-discipline engagements 

• Allocating financial and human resources and material assets   

• Formulating and enforcing work standards  

• Participating in the design phase of tasks and ensuring their successful execution  
 

2. Senior Consultant: A minimum of ten (10) years’ experience in duties associated with MCS 

is required for Senior Consultant positions. The functional responsibilities of this position 

may include, but are not limited to: 

 

• Managing the day-to-day operations 

• Ensuring the quality and timely completion of projects or services 

• Providing technical and subject matter expertise in fulfillment of Customer SOWs 

• Participating as a senior team member providing high-level consulting services 

• Planning, organizing, and executing tasks in successful delivery of projects or 
services 

• Developing and defining strategic visions 

• Planning, directing, controlling, scheduling, coordinating, and organizing 
management of tasks 

• Providing Customer interface in fulfillment of Customer SOWs 

• Possessing authority and responsibility for the execution of Customer SOWs 

• Planning, organizing, and overseeing all subordinate work efforts 

• Ensuring quality standards and work performance on Customer SOWs 

• Organizing, directing, and managing support services  
 



3. Consultant: A minimum of five (5) years’ experience in duties associated with MCS is 

required for Consultant positions. The functional responsibilities of this position may 

include, but are not limited to: 

 

• Applying administrative, consultative, and technical expertise in fulfillment of 
Customer SOWs  

• Planning, organizing, executing, and controlling project tasks in successful delivery 
of projects or services  

• Interfacing with Customer on a day-to-day basis to ensure timely delivery of project 
or services  

• Applying a broad set of management skills and technical expertise as a project 
leader 

• Providing solutions through analysis 

• Directing subordinates in the completion of tasks orders  

• Organizing, directing, and managing support services  

• Assigning tasks and overseeing projects or other services under the Customer 
SOWs 

• Directing activities in fulfillment of Customer SOWs  

• Training Customer personnel through formal classroom courses, workshops. or 
seminars 

 

4. Junior Consultant: A minimum of three (3) years’ experience in duties associated with 

MCS is required for Junior Consultant positions. The functional responsibilities of this 

position may include, but are not limited to: 

  

• Applying a broad set of subject matter and technical expertise 

• Directing projects or services under the Customer SOWs within estimated 
timeframes and budget constraints 

• Organizing, directing, and managing support services 

• Serving as a member of a team performing mid-level assignments  

• Providing solutions through analysis 

• Conducting Customer training through formal classroom courses, workshops, and 
seminars 

 

5. Program and Administrative Support: The functional responsibilities of this position may 

include, but are not limited to: 

 

• Coordinating and providing administrative support services to Contractor staff and 
Customer 

• Supporting the provision of services or production of project deliverables and 
performing administrative functions required to complete tasks  

• Providing graphics and editorial support services and desktop publishing services 

• Maintaining version control of project documents 

• Providing direct support to consulting staff, including supporting the development 
of all deliverables 

 



22ND CENTURY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. $160.23 $142.93 $137.72 $98.12 $78.23

AAJ COMPUTER SERVICES, INC. dba OZ $210.00 $195.00 $150.00 $125.00 $45.00

ACCENTURE LLP $420.00 $355.00 $265.00 $180.00 $65.00

ADVANCED SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC. $230.00 $175.00 $145.00 $90.00 $45.00

ALVAREZ & MARSAL HOLDINGS, LLC $522.00 $470.00 $437.00 $377.00 $0.00

ARCADIS U.S., INC. $275.00 $195.00 $150.00 $120.00 $75.00

ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC. $288.93 $234.88 $182.18 $140.48 $85.60

BCA WATSON RICE LLP $200.00 $175.00 $150.00 $100.00 $25.00

BEACON SYSTEMS, INC. $155.00 $135.00 $105.00 $65.00 $25.00

BERRY, DUNN, MCNEIL & PARKER LLC $285.00 $260.00 $210.00 $165.00 $60.00

CAMBRIA SOLUTIONS, INC. $243.00 $200.00 $155.00 $111.00 $40.00

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, LLC $270.00 $180.00 $150.00 $125.00 $45.00

CDR MAGUIRE INC. $225.00 $195.00 $165.00 $135.00 $95.00

CIVIC INITIATIVES, LLC $230.00 $185.00 $155.00 $135.00 $110.00

COHNREZNICK LLP $200.00 $190.00 $165.00 $135.00 $75.00

COST MANAGEMENT INC. $195.00 $153.00 $126.00 $98.00 $48.00

CROWE LLP $364.73 $270.94 $182.37 $151.11 $52.11

CSG GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. $220.00 $180.00 $155.00 $95.00 $30.00

CSRS, INC. $290.00 $210.00 $165.00 $125.00 $90.00

DELOITTE CONSULTING LLP $245.00 $230.00 $190.00 $145.00 $55.00

DIGITAL INTELLIGENCE SYSTEMS, LLC $136.00 $116.00 $88.00 $57.00 $25.00

ERNST & YOUNG U.S. LLP $325.00 $300.00 $240.00 $165.00 $125.00

FCMC LLC $208.00 $162.00 $128.00 $90.00 $35.00

FEDERAL ENGINEERING, INC. $225.00 $190.00 $175.00 $145.00 $80.00

FIRST DATA GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LP $240.00 $220.00 $180.00 $175.00 $80.00

GARTNER, INC. $540.00 $461.00 $297.00 $75.00 $30.00

GENESIS CONSULTING PARTNERS, LLC $210.00 $175.00 $145.00 $105.00 $85.00

GRANT THORNTON PUBLIC SECTOR LLC $335.03 $237.24 $155.05 $110.36 $97.29

GOVERNMENT SERVICES GROUP, INC. $250.00 $185.00 $150.00 $115.00 $35.00

HAGERTY CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. $250.00 $200.00 $160.00 $130.00 $95.00

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC. $310.00 $265.00 $130.00 $120.00 $30.00

ICF INCORPORATED, L.L.C. $390.00 $240.00 $135.00 $85.00 $35.00

INFORMATION SYSTEMS CONSULTANTS, INC. $120.00 $100.00 $85.00 $70.00 $60.00

INNOVATIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, INC. $225.00 $170.00 $135.00 $110.00 $70.00

ISF, INC. $250.00 $195.00 $140.00 $90.00 $40.00

KPMG LLP $305.00 $280.00 $250.00 $175.00 $135.00

MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. $290.00 $210.00 $150.00 $120.00 $60.00

MERIDIAN PARTNERS, LLC $255.00 $190.00 $155.00 $100.00 $45.00

MGT OF AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC $275.00 $225.00 $185.00 $145.00 $65.00

MORGANFRANKLIN CONSULTING, LLC $250.00 $175.00 $135.00 $101.00 $28.00

NTT DATA STATE HEALTH CONSULTING, LLC $250.00 $225.00 $175.00 $150.00 $120.00

PROCOM CONSULTING, INC. $200.00 $175.00 $100.00 $60.00 $20.00

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC $295.00 $275.00 $230.00 $180.00 $115.00

RSM US LLP $250.00 $225.00 $185.00 $135.00 $110.00

SLALOM, LLC $224.62 $203.73 $182.83 $161.94 $141.04

STRATEGIC IT ALIGNMENT GROUP, LLC $200.00 $150.00 $105.00 $80.00 $39.00

TEKSYSTEMS GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC $229.00 $160.00 $128.00 $95.00 $47.00

TELAFORCE, LLC $225.00 $180.00 $125.00 $115.00 $75.00

THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC $260.00 $150.00 $100.00 $80.00 $60.00

THE NORTH HIGHLAND COMPANY LLC $242.00 $195.00 $175.00 $135.00 $0.00

THOMAS HOWELL FERGUSON P.A. $246.00 $169.00 $148.00 $126.00 $79.00

TIDAL BASIN GOVERNMENT CONSULTING, LLC $265.00 $205.00 $195.00 $165.00 $65.00

TRANSPRO CONSULTING, LLC $200.00 $175.00 $150.00 $105.00 $20.00

WALTER R. MCDONALD & ASSOCIATES, INC. $245.00 $160.00 $144.00 $99.00 $45.00

WHEELER EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT CONSULTING, LLC$225.00 $160.00 $140.00 $120.00 $50.00

Program and 

Administrative 

Support (Hourly 

Rate)

Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1)

Price Sheet

Junior 

Consultant 

(Hourly Rate)

Contractor

Principal 

Consultant 

(Hourly Rate)

Senior 

Consultant 

(Hourly Rate)

Consultant 

(Hourly Rate)



22ND CENTURY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ● ● ● ●

AAJ COMPUTER SERVICES, INC. dba OZ

ACCENTURE LLP ● ● ● ●

ADVANCED SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC. ● ● ● ●

ALVAREZ & MARSAL HOLDINGS, LLC ● ● ●

ARCADIS U.S., INC. ● ● ● ●

ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC. ● ● ● ●

BCA WATSON RICE LLP ● ● ● ●

BEACON SYSTEMS, INC. ● ● ● ●

BERRY, DUNN, MCNEIL & PARKER LLC

CAMBRIA SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ● ● ●

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, LLC ● ● ● ●

CDR MAGUIRE INC. ● ● ●

CIVIC INITIATIVES, LLC ● ● ●

COHNREZNICK LLP ● ● ● ●

COST MANAGEMENT INC. ● ●

CROWE LLP ● ● ● ●

CSG GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ● ● ●

CSRS, INC. ● ● ● ●

DELOITTE CONSULTING LLP ● ● ● ●

DIGITAL INTELLIGENCE SYSTEMS, LLC ● ●

ERNST & YOUNG U.S. LLP ● ● ●

FCMC LLC ● ● ● ●

FEDERAL ENGINEERING, INC. ● ● ● ●

FIRST DATA GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LP ● ●

GARTNER, INC. ● ● ● ●

GENESIS CONSULTING PARTNERS, LLC ● ● ●

GRANT THORNTON PUBLIC SECTOR LLC ● ● ● ●

GOVERNMENT SERVICES GROUP, INC.

HAGERTY CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ● ●

ICF INCORPORATED, L.L.C.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS CONSULTANTS, INC. ●

INNOVATIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, INC. ● ● ● ●

ISF, INC. ● ● ● ●

KPMG LLP ● ● ● ●

MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. ● ● ● ●

MERIDIAN PARTNERS, LLC

MGT OF AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

MORGANFRANKLIN CONSULTING, LLC ● ●

NTT DATA STATE HEALTH CONSULTING, LLC ●

PROCOM CONSULTING, INC. ● ● ● ●

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC ● ● ● ●

RSM US LLP ●

SLALOM, LLC

STRATEGIC IT ALIGNMENT GROUP, LLC ● ●

TEKSYSTEMS GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC ● ● ● ●

TELAFORCE, LLC

THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC ● ● ● ●

THE NORTH HIGHLAND COMPANY LLC ● ● ● ●

THOMAS HOWELL FERGUSON P.A. ● ● ● ●

TIDAL BASIN GOVERNMENT CONSULTING, LLC

TRANSPRO CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

WALTER R. MCDONALD & ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ● ● ●

WHEELER EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT CONSULTING, LLC

Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1)

Contractors by Service

Contractor

a) Consulting on 

Management 

Strategy

b) Project 

Management

c) Program 

Research, Planning, 

and Evaluations

d) Provision of 

Studies, Analyses, 

Scenarios, and 

Reports relating to a 

Customer’s mission-

oriented business 

programs or 

initiatives



22ND CENTURY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ● ● ● ●

AAJ COMPUTER SERVICES, INC. dba OZ ●

ACCENTURE LLP ● ●

ADVANCED SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC. ● ● ● ●

ALVAREZ & MARSAL HOLDINGS, LLC ●

ARCADIS U.S., INC. ● ● ● ●

ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC. ● ● ●

BCA WATSON RICE LLP ● ● ●

BEACON SYSTEMS, INC. ● ● ● ●

BERRY, DUNN, MCNEIL & PARKER LLC ● ●

CAMBRIA SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ● ● ●

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, LLC ● ● ● ●

CDR MAGUIRE INC. ● ● ● ●

CIVIC INITIATIVES, LLC ● ●

COHNREZNICK LLP ● ● ●

COST MANAGEMENT INC. ●

CROWE LLP ● ● ● ●

CSG GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ● ● ●

CSRS, INC. ● ● ●

DELOITTE CONSULTING LLP ● ● ● ●

DIGITAL INTELLIGENCE SYSTEMS, LLC

ERNST & YOUNG U.S. LLP ● ● ● ●

FCMC LLC ● ●

FEDERAL ENGINEERING, INC. ● ● ● ●

FIRST DATA GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LP

GARTNER, INC. ●

GENESIS CONSULTING PARTNERS, LLC ● ● ●

GRANT THORNTON PUBLIC SECTOR LLC ● ● ● ●

GOVERNMENT SERVICES GROUP, INC.

HAGERTY CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ● ● ●

ICF INCORPORATED, L.L.C. ● ●

INFORMATION SYSTEMS CONSULTANTS, INC.

INNOVATIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, INC. ● ● ●

ISF, INC. ● ● ● ●

KPMG LLP ● ● ● ●

MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. ● ● ● ●

MERIDIAN PARTNERS, LLC ● ● ●

MGT OF AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC ● ●

MORGANFRANKLIN CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

NTT DATA STATE HEALTH CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

PROCOM CONSULTING, INC. ● ●

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC ● ● ● ●

RSM US LLP ●

SLALOM, LLC ●

STRATEGIC IT ALIGNMENT GROUP, LLC ●

TEKSYSTEMS GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC ● ●

TELAFORCE, LLC ● ●

THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC ● ●

THE NORTH HIGHLAND COMPANY LLC ● ● ● ●

THOMAS HOWELL FERGUSON P.A. ● ● ● ●

TIDAL BASIN GOVERNMENT CONSULTING, LLC

TRANSPRO CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

WALTER R. MCDONALD & ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ●

WHEELER EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT CONSULTING, LLC ●

Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1)

Contractors by Service

Contractor

e) Executive/ 

Management 

Coaching Services

f) Customized 

Training as needed 

to achieve a 

Management 

Consulting Objective

g) Assistance with 

Policy and 

Regulation 

Development

h) Assistance with 

Process and 

Productivity 

Improvement



22ND CENTURY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. ● ● ●

AAJ COMPUTER SERVICES, INC. dba OZ ● ●

ACCENTURE LLP ● ● ●

ADVANCED SYSTEMS DESIGN, INC. ● ● ●

ALVAREZ & MARSAL HOLDINGS, LLC ●

ARCADIS U.S., INC. ● ● ● ●

ATKINS NORTH AMERICA, INC. ● ● ● ●

BCA WATSON RICE LLP ● ● ●

BEACON SYSTEMS, INC. ● ● ● ●

BERRY, DUNN, MCNEIL & PARKER LLC

CAMBRIA SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ●

CARR, RIGGS & INGRAM, LLC ● ● ● ●

CDR MAGUIRE INC. ● ● ●

CIVIC INITIATIVES, LLC ●

COHNREZNICK LLP ● ● ●

COST MANAGEMENT INC. ●

CROWE LLP ● ● ● ●

CSG GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. ● ●

CSRS, INC. ● ● ●

DELOITTE CONSULTING LLP ● ● ●

DIGITAL INTELLIGENCE SYSTEMS, LLC

ERNST & YOUNG U.S. LLP ● ● ●

FCMC LLC ● ● ●

FEDERAL ENGINEERING, INC. ● ● ● ●

FIRST DATA GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS, LP

GARTNER, INC. ● ●

GENESIS CONSULTING PARTNERS, LLC ●

GRANT THORNTON PUBLIC SECTOR LLC ● ● ● ●

GOVERNMENT SERVICES GROUP, INC. ●

HAGERTY CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. ●

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ● ●

ICF INCORPORATED, L.L.C.

INFORMATION SYSTEMS CONSULTANTS, INC.

INNOVATIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, INC. ● ● ●

ISF, INC. ● ● ● ●

KPMG LLP ● ● ● ●

MAXIMUS CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. ● ● ● ●

MERIDIAN PARTNERS, LLC ●

MGT OF AMERICA CONSULTING, LLC ● ●

MORGANFRANKLIN CONSULTING, LLC ● ● ●

NTT DATA STATE HEALTH CONSULTING, LLC ● ●

PROCOM CONSULTING, INC. ● ● ●

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC ● ● ●

RSM US LLP ● ● ●

SLALOM, LLC ●

STRATEGIC IT ALIGNMENT GROUP, LLC

TEKSYSTEMS GLOBAL SERVICES, LLC ●

TELAFORCE, LLC ●

THE BALMORAL GROUP, LLC ● ●

THE NORTH HIGHLAND COMPANY LLC ● ● ● ●

THOMAS HOWELL FERGUSON P.A. ● ● ● ●

TIDAL BASIN GOVERNMENT CONSULTING, LLC ●

TRANSPRO CONSULTING, LLC ●

WALTER R. MCDONALD & ASSOCIATES, INC. ● ●

WHEELER EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT CONSULTING, LLC ●

Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1)

Contractors by Service

k) Systems 

Alignment and 

Consolidation

l) Comprehensive 

Grants Management 

Services Related to 

the Stafford Act and 

other related State 

and Federal Grant 

Programs

Contractor

i) Expert Witness 

Services in Support 

of Litigation, Claims, 

or Other Formal 

Cases Relating to 

Management 

Consulting

j) Advisory and 

Assistance Services 

Relating to a 

Customer’s Mission-

Oriented Business 

Programs or 

Initiatives



12/15/21 

 

How to Use This Contract 
Management Consulting Services (80101500-20-1) 

Contractor information, pricing, and contract documents are located on the contract webpage at 
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreeme
nts/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services2. 

State Agencies 

• An RFQ for services or IT commodities must be issued to at least 25 vendors on the contract (or 
all vendors, if less than 25)…  Please note that some contractors are not contracted to provide 
all of the 12 services that are available under this contract; an RFQ should not be issued to any 
contractor that does not offer the service requested in the RFQ.  Please refer to "Contractors by 
Service" in the Contract Information section of the contract webpage to view the service(s) that 
each contractor is contracted to provide. 

• The State of Florida’s online procurement system, MyFloridaMarketPlace (MFMP), is the 
preferred method for placing orders and making payments for this contract: 

o Create an electronic quote (eQuote) in MFMP Sourcing; for additional information, visit 
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamark
etplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/electronic_quotes_equotes.  For 
your convenience, the Division of State Purchasing has developed an eQuote template 
specifically for this contract; when creating an eQuote for this contract: 

▪ Refer to the eQuote Templates for State Term Contracts Job Aid. 
▪ Select the contract number shown above in the ‘Contract Number’ field. 
▪ Select No for ‘Notify Vendors?’ to ensure that only contracted vendors, which 

are added and/or confirmed by the customer, will be notified. 
▪ Select the Management Consulting eQuote Master Template. 
▪ Select at least one contracted vendor for the event; do not add ‘Public User’. 
▪ In addition to the vendor(s) selected by the customer to participate in the 

eQuote, up to 25 randomly-selected vendors will be added for the service 
selected; the customer should confirm that all vendors (whether manually or 
automatically added) are contracted for the specific service requested. 

▪ The specific format of the RFQ is left to the discretion of the agency; the 
template provides a standard format with fields for scope of work attachments, 
contact information, vendor certification, and service selection. 

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreements/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services2
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_contracts_and_agreements/state_term_contracts/management_consulting_services2
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_purchasing_service_updates/an_rfq_for_services_or_it_commodities_must_be_issued_to_at_least_25_vendors_on_the_contract_or_all_vendors_if_less_than_25
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/state_purchasing_service_updates/an_rfq_for_services_or_it_commodities_must_be_issued_to_at_least_25_vendors_on_the_contract_or_all_vendors_if_less_than_25
https://sourcing.myfloridamarketplace.com/
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/electronic_quotes_equotes
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/electronic_quotes_equotes
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/content/download/153050/1017701/eQuote_Templates_for_STCs_Job_Aid.pdf


12/15/21 

▪ The eQuote/RFQ must specify a term and include a customer statement of work 
(SOW) that states the services, service levels, educational qualifications, and 
experience needed.  State agencies should consider including the following 
information in the eQuote/RFQ: 

▪ Statement of purpose; 
▪ Customer project job duties; 
▪ Required tasks and deliverables, completion of which is subject to 

customer acceptance; 
▪ Requirement for contractor to provide an estimate of the number of 

hours needed to complete the projects or deliverables, as described in 
the customer SOW; 

▪ Customer project timeline; 
▪ List of contractor responsibilities; 
▪ Necessary qualifications/certifications of the individuals/organization 

performing work on the customer project; 
▪ Customer-specific financial consequences for non-performance; and 
▪ Customer-specific terms and conditions. 

o Create a requisition/purchase order in MFMP Buyer; for additional information, visit 
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamark
etplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/requisitions_purchase_orders. 

o CATALOG TYPE:  None - Create a requisition and click the ‘Create Non-Catalog Item’ 
button.  In the ‘Supplier’ field, use the appropriate contractor’s FEIN, as provided on the 
contract webpage; in the ‘State Contract ID’ field, select the contract number shown 
above from the drop-down menu. 

o COMMODITY CODE:  Select the most appropriate eight-digit commodity code under 
80101500 or 80101600; the current list of commodity codes activated in MFMP is 
located at https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/
myfloridamarketplace/commodity_codes. 

o METHOD OF PROCUREMENT:  B - State term contract with RFQ 
• Please use the appropriate contractor’s FEIN, as provided on the contract webpage, when 

making payments in the Florida Accounting Information Resource (FLAIR); also, please use the 
appropriate contractor’s FEIN when recording purchasing card (PCard) payments in FLAIR. 

Eligible Users 

• Eligible users, as defined by Rule 60A-1.001, Florida Administrative Code, must create an RFQ to 
place an order using this contract.  Eligible users must send the RFQ electronically via email to 
at least eight (8) contractors; the selected contractors must be contracted to provide the 
service(s) requested.  Contractor contact information is accessible from the contract webpage.  
The RFQ must specify a term and include a customer SOW that states the services, service 
levels, educational qualifications, and experience needed.  Eligible users should consider 
including the information listed in the “State Agencies” section above in the RFQ. 

https://buyer.myfloridamarketplace.com/
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/requisitions_purchase_orders
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/mfmp_agency_customers/mfmp_university/requisitions_purchase_orders
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/commodity_codes
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace/commodity_codes
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/RuleNo.asp?title=GENERAL%20REGULATIONS&ID=60A-1.001


12/15/21 

Frequently Asked Questions 

• Can I purchase from a vendor outside of this contract if they offer better pricing? 
o In accordance with section 287.056, Florida Statutes, state agencies are required to 

purchase commodities and contractual services from state term contracts procured by 
the Department of Management Services. 

• What should I do if I have an issue with the contractor? 
o If you are unable to resolve an issue with a contractor, you may contact the contract 

manager listed on the contract webpages to explore additional options.  These options 
include: complete a vendor performance survey online to document the issue, work 
with the contract manager to elevate the issue with the contractor representatives, or 
submit a vendor complaint that requires a formal response from the contractor. 

Contact Information 

• If you have any questions or require assistance specific to this contract (e.g. pricing, contract 
requirements, etc.), please contact the contract manager listed on the contract webpage. 

• If you have any questions or require assistance specific to MFMP (e.g. system access, purchase 
orders, catalogs, etc.), please visit the Division of State Purchasing’s MFMP webpage located at 
https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace. 

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business_operations/state_purchasing/myfloridamarketplace






TO:  Mayor Robert Howell and Council 
FROM:  Peter Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  June 3, 2022 
RE:  Administrative Assistant | Resumes 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

To assist in providing administrative staff to the Town of Kenneth City’s Town Hall, management has 
collected a number of resumes for the Town Council to review in their efforts to provide coverage for 
the Town Hall. 

Staff has attached the current Administrative Assistant Job Description and 10 resumes that were 
collected.  Several of these applicants seem to be potential employees for the Town of Kenneth City. 

Several of the applicants have been interviewed by Town Hall Staff. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The requested hourly wages for these non-exempt positions range between $15.00 and $18.00 (plus 
benefits).  This salary has been provided for in the current budget (FY 2022-23). 

CONCLUSION 
 
Staff respectfully requests direction, if any, to proceed with the selection and hiring of one of the 
applicants discussed above. 





















































TO:  Mayor Robert Howell and Council 
FROM:  Peter Cavalli, Town Manager 
DATE:  June 3, 2022 
RE:  Finance/Accounting Specialist | Resumes 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

To assist in providing administrative staff to the Town of Kenneth City’s Town Hall, management has 
collected a number of resumes for the Town Council to review in their efforts to provide coverage for 
the Town Hall. 

Staff has attached the current Finance/Accounting Specialist Job Description and 14 resumes that were 
collected.  Several of these applicants seem to be potential employees for the Town of Kenneth City. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The requested salary range for this exempt position range between $41,330 to $61,996 annually (plus 
benefits).   

 

CONCLUSION 
 
Staff respectfully requests direction, if any, to proceed with the selection and hiring of one of the 
applicants discussed above for the position of Finance/Accounting Specialist. 



The Town of Kenneth City Invites Applications for 
the Position of: 

Finance/Accounting Specialist 

Salary: $41,330 to $61,996 Annually, DOQ 

Opening Date: March 21, 2016 

Closing Date:  Open until filled 

General Description of Duties 

Performs intermediate paraprofessional work with emphasis in preparing, maintaining and interpretation of a 
variety of financial reports and accounting records, with routine work in accounts payable and receipt; Performs 
human resources generalist and duplicative duties in absence of the Town Clerk.  Does related work as required.  
Work is performed under regular to limited supervision by the Town Manager or Town Clerk, and is evaluated 
through observation, conferences, and the quality and effectiveness of work completed.  Reports to Town Manager. 

Examples of Essential Job Functions 

The duties recorded below are representative of the duties of the class and are not intended to cover all the 
duties performed by incumbent(s) of any particular position. 

Reviews, monitors and processes a variety of fiscal transactions. Reconciles accounts. Maintains records. 
Receives and accounts for cash transactions. Performs billing. Reviews accounts payable transactions for 
accurate documentation. Authorizes and processes payments. Performs purchasing functions. Develops and 
monitors budgets and financial reports. Assists in compiling information pertaining to budgets, accounts, 
inventories and other financial operations. Enters data onto spreadsheets, ledgers, worksheets and/or other 
forms. Performs payroll duties, as needed.  Responds to inquiries; checks accounting transactions to resolve 
discrepancies. Prepares and maintains 1099 vendor records and tax filing documents.  Performs human 
resources generalist duties including benefits and risk management, meanwhile maintaining a thorough, 
working knowledge of state and federal employment laws and public sector human resources practices.  May 
support research administration activities such as monitoring grant funding and expenditures. Performs related 
responsibilities as required.  

Minimum Training & Experience 

Bachelor’s degree in finance, accounting, business or a related field, and a familiarity of local government 
finance, accounting or business principles is preferred, or 

Two years college with courses in finance, accounting, human resources or public administration, 
supplemented by two-years related experience. An equivalent combination of education, training, and/or 



 
 

experience may be considered in lieu of the educational requirements for this position.   

Thorough, working knowledge of computers, software and other modern office equipment, including MS Word, 
Excel, and Publisher is required.  Experience in Tyler Technologies – Fund Balance software strongly preferred.   

Candidate must be highly motivated and organized, and possess an interest or ability to learn new tasks while being 
able to interact pleasantly and positively with the general public, vendors, and other employees.    

Must possess a valid Florida Driver’s License. 

Please note:  Preference may be given to motivated candidates with 1 to 2 years of municipal finance, accounting, 
human resources and/or a public administration background with an interest in obtaining a position within a 
progressive community who, after obtaining 3-5 years of experience, will be poised to advance to a progressively 
responsible municipal position elsewhere, to ultimately further their overall career objectives.     
 
 

ADA Compliance 

This is sedentary work requiring the exertion of up to 25 pounds of force occasionally and a negligible amount of force 
frequently or constantly to move objects.  Work requires fingering, grasping, and repetitive motions; vocal 
communication is required for expressing or exchanging ideas by means of the spoken word, and conveying detailed 
or important instructions to others accurately, loudly, or quickly.  Hearing is required to perceive information at normal 
spoken word levels, and to receive detailed information through oral communications and/or to make fine distinctions 
in sound; visual acuity is required for peripheral vision, preparing and analyzing written or computer data, operation 
of machines, operation of motor vehicles or equipment, determining the accuracy and thoroughness of work, and 
observing general surroundings and activities. The worker is not subject to adverse environmental conditions.   
 
 
The Town of Kenneth City is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the employer will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities 
and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 

















































































Transition Services

Professional 
Management



Executive Team



Immediate Short-Term Needs

Accounting 
Services

Code 
Enforcement



Revenue Analysis

Review ACFR and Annual Budget

Review of current revenue sources

Comparative Tax and Rate Study

Analysis & Evaluation of current Ad Valorem Base

Ad Valorem Supported versus Assessment Supported Activities



Professional Services & Technology Assessments 

Build list of contracts and services providers 

Identify multiple options for solutions

Develop ITB, RFQ or RFP as needed

Ensure proper procurement

Negotiate agreements along with legal counsel



Annual Budget

Prepare Program Based Annual Budget

Workshop(s) with Town Council

Compliance Requirements for Adoption



Interim Town Clerk

Notices 
Council Meeting Functions 
Custodian of records and official seal
Administer oaths as necessary
Prepare agenda for council meetings



Interim Town Manager

Daily/Weekly 

Bank Deposits, Sign Checks
Backup Servers
Website Updates
Manage Staff / Task Orders
Weekly Reports

Monthly 

Current Vendor 
Management
Council Agenda Prep
Council 1-to-1s
Town Council Meetings





AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL  
MUNICIPAL MANAGEMENT AND EXECUTIVE SERVICES 

 
This Agreement for Professional Municipal and Management Services (the “Agreement”) is made 
and entered into by and between TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, a Florida municipal corporation 
organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida (the “TOWN”), and IMAGINE THAT 
PERFORMANCE, LLC, of 18133 Portside Street, Tampa, Florida 33647 (the “COMPANY”), to 
set forth the terms and conditions of certain professional services to be provided to Town by the 
Company, in the manner set forth herein. This Agreement is made effective as of June 8, 2022 (the 
“Effective Date”). Town and Company may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties.” This Agreement and the Exhibits, Appendices, and Addendums, 
attached hereto as incorporated herein by reference and shall be referred to collectively as the 
“Agreement.” 

WHEREAS, the TOWN requires professional municipal management and executive 
services to assist government operations from time to time;  

WHEREAS, the COMPANY can offer resources, proficiency, and desires to offer 
professional transitional services to the TOWN as described herein to serve a valid public purpose 
which is in the best interest of the TOWN; and 

WHEREAS, time is of the essence to ensure that these essential executive level functions 
are diligently discharged to ensure the continued preservation of the public’s health, safety, and 
wellness facilitated by TOWN’s stable operation.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and 
representations contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows:  

 

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Imagine That Performance, LLC hereby agrees to provide, 
and TOWN agrees to accept, the Services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and as further outlined in the Exhibits attached hereto, including but not limited to: 

• Exhibit C: Interim Town Manager  

• Exhibit D: Accounting and Code Enforcement Solutions  

• Exhibit E: Revenue Analysis and Professional Services Solution Identification  

• Exhibit F: Annual Budget Preparation and Compliance  

• Exhibit G: Interim Town Clerk 

Additional Services may be added in the future with properly executed Task Order(s) using 
EXHIBIT A: TASK ORDER TEMPLATE and EXHIBIT B: HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE.  



2. PAYMENT. Payment shall be made to COMPANY for the Services set forth herein, on 
those terms further agreed upon by the Parties in a Task Order. Regular invoices will be submitted 
to the Town by Company according to the executed Task Order(s), and the TOWN shall remit full 
payment to Company for the Services within fourteen (14) calendar days of receipt thereof. 
Payment due to Company hereunder will be made by check and in U.S. dollars and will be remitted 
to Company’s address specified in the applicable invoice. TOWN agrees and acknowledges that 
in the event it fails to pay for the Services on the terms set forth in the applicable Task Order, such 
failure will constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling Company to immediate 
termination hereof without penalty, in addition to any other remedies available at law.  

3. AGREEEMENT TERM. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
will automatically terminate three (3) years thereafter (the “Initial Term”), unless sooner 
terminated by either Party in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Thereafter, this 
Agreement may be renewed only upon mutual written agreement of the Parties (each a “Renewal 
Term” and together with the “Initial Term,” the “Agreement Term”).  

4. WORK PRODUCT OWNERSHIP. Any copyrightable works, ideas, discoveries, 
inventions, patents, products, or other information (collectively the "Work Product") developed in 
whole or in part by COMPANY and delivered to Town as part of the Services will be the exclusive 
property of TOWN. Upon request, COMPANY will execute, within a reasonable period of time, 
all documents necessary to confirm or perfect the exclusive ownership of TOWN to the Work 
Product. Upon termination of this Agreement, COMPANY will return to TOWN all records, notes, 
documentation and other items that were used, created, or controlled by COMPANY during the 
term of this Agreement.  

5. INDEMNIFICATION. COMPANY agrees to indemnify and hold TOWN harmless 
from all claims, losses, expenses, fees including attorney fees, costs, and judgments that may be 
asserted against TOWN that result from the acts or omissions of COMPANY and/or COMPANY's 
employees, agents, or representatives.  

6. DEFAULT. The Parties hereby agree that the occurrence of any of the following events, 
actions, or omissions shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, causing the breaching 
Party to be in default hereof:  

a. The failure by a Party to make a required payment when due.  

b. The insolvency or bankruptcy of either Party.  

c. The subjection of any of a Party's property to any levy, seizure, general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, application or sale for or by any creditor or government agency.  

d. The failure by Company to provide the Services on the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and/or any applicable Task Order.  

7. TERMINATION. Either Party may terminate this Agreement for any reason or no 
reason, by providing written notice to the other Party of its intent to terminate. In the event the 
Town provides a written notice of termination to Company, Company will immediately cease all 



work being performed hereunder and/or under any applicable Task Order, unless the Parties agree 
otherwise. Upon termination of this Agreement by either Party, any and all amounts due to 
Company for providing Services will be remitted to Company no later than fourteen (14) calendar 
days after the Agreement’s termination date. Company will further reimburse the COMPANY for 
any agreed-upon, non-cancellable expenses incurred by Company in connection with the Services. 

8. SURVIVAL. The terms contained in this Agreement pursuant to Sections 4 (WORK 
PRODUCT OWNERSHIP), 5 (INDEMNIFICATION), and 9 (REMEDIES) shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement and will remain in full force and effect after expiration hereof.   

9. REMEDIES; TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. In addition to all other rights a Party 
may have available at law, either Party may immediately terminate this Agreement if the other   
Party fails to substantially perform any material provision, term or condition hereof (including 
without limitation the failure to make a monetary payment when due) and fails to cure such default 
within fifteen (15) calendar days of receiving written notice thereof. Notice of the default shall be 
provided to the defaulting Party with sufficient detail so as to allow the defaulting Party to ascertain 
the nature of the default. In such event, termination by the non-defaulting Party shall be deemed a 
termination “For Cause” entitling such Party to terminate this Agreement immediately and without 
penalty. Unless waived in writing by the non-defaulting Party, the failure by the defaulting Party 
to cure the default(s) within the fifteen-day cure period shall result in the automatic termination of 
this Agreement. 

10. FORCE MAJEURE. If performance of this Agreement or any obligation under this 
Agreement is prevented, restricted, or interfered with by causes beyond either Party's reasonable 
control (a "Force Majeure Event"), the Party so affected by the Force Majeure Event shall, upon 
giving written notice to the other Party, be excused from such performance to the extent of such 
prevention, restriction, or interference provided that the affected Party shall use its best commercial 
efforts to avoid or remove the causes of its nonperformance, and shall continue performance 
whenever such causes are removed. The term “Force Majeure Event” as used in this Agreement 
means, but is not limited to, acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism, storm or other similar 
occurrence, orders or acts of military or civil authority, or by national emergencies, insurrections, 
riots, or wars, or strikes, lockouts, work stoppages or other labor disputes, or supplier failures. Any 
act or omission that is within the reasonable control of the Party whose performance is required is 
not excused under this Section 10 if such Party, or its employees, officers, agents, or affiliates, had 
a reasonable opportunity to remove or avoid the cause of non-performance prior to the time at 
which performance became impossible or impracticable.  

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement and the Exhibits, Appendices, 
Addendums, and Task Orders incorporated herein constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and replaces and supersedes all prior agreements and 
discussions between the Parties with respect to such subject matter.  

12. SEVERABILITY. In the event any term of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not 



affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms hereof, nor of the application or meaning 
of such term as defined or applied in any other jurisdiction. 

13. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except as mutually 
agreed to in a writing signed by both Parties hereto.  

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Company shall provide the Services to TOWN 
in the capacity of an independent contractor. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as 
vesting or delegating to COMPANY or its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, any 
rights, interest, or status as an employee of TOWN. TOWN shall not be liable to any person, firm 
or corporation that is employed by, contracts with, or provides goods or services to the COMPANY 
in connection with the performance of this Agreement or for debts or claims accruing to such 
parties. COMPANY shall promptly pay, discharge, or promptly take such action as may be 
necessary and reasonable to settle such debts or claims.  

15. NOTICES. Any notice permitted or required to be made under this Agreement shall 
be in writing and signed by the Party giving such notice, and shall be deemed given and received 
by the other Party when transmitted: (i) by hand delivery, (ii) by overnight courier service; (iii) 
forty-eight (48) hours after being deposited in the U.S. mail as certified or registered mail with 
postage pre-paid, addressed to the Party to be notified or directed to such other address as may be 
supplied in writing; or (iv) when delivered by electronic mail. Notice shall be sent to a Party as 
follows: 

If to the TOWN:    If to the COMPANY:  

Robert Howell, Mayor   Rob Duncan, Managing Director  
Town of Kenneth City   Imagine That Performance, LLC 
6000 54th Avenue North   18133 Portside Street  
Kenneth City, FL 33709   Tampa, FL 33647  
Phone: 727-498-8948    Phone: 813-699-9614  
Email: howellr@kennethcityfl.org  Email: rob@imaginethatperformance.com 

 
16.  LIMITATION OF USE OF TOWN STAFF AND ASSETS. COMPANY’S staff 

assigned to provide the Services under this Agreement shall not be permitted to utilize any TOWN 
personnel, equipment, electronic systems, or other TOWN subcontractors to perform any work or 
project of any kind other than to assist in the performance of the scope of Services outlined by this 
Agreement and attached Exhibits. Failure to strictly adhere to this provision shall be grounds for 
immediate removal of the offending staff or, if staff is not removed, termination of the Agreement.  

17. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS. All records created under this Agreement shall be 
the property of TOWN, and TOWN shall be responsible for custody and retention of such records. 
TOWN shall allow COMPANY access to business records solely for the purpose of COMPANY 
and its staff fulfilling the obligations of this Agreement. Pursuant to section 119.071, Florida 
Statures, COMPANY shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, and agree to:  

mailto:howellr@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:rob@imaginethatperformance.com


A) Keep and maintain all public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required 
by Municipality to keep and maintain in order to perform Services under this Agreement.  

B) Upon request from Municipality’s custodian of public records, provide copies to 
Municipality within a reasonable time and public access to said public records on the same terms 
and conditions that Municipality would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the 
cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

C) Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.  

D) Meet all requirements for retaining said public records and transfer, at no cost, to 
Municipality all said public records in possession of COMPANY and SPINA upon termination of 
this Agreement and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and 
exempt from Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to Municipality in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of Municipality.  

E) IF COMPANY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THEIR DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS AT:  

Clerk Office Address: 6000 54th Ave. N. Kenneth City, FL. 33709 Phone: 727-498-8948 

18. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without reference to its conflict of law principles.  
The Parties hereby agree that any suit, action or proceeding with respect to or arising out of this 
Agreement shall have as its venue and shall be litigated solely in the courts with jurisdiction over, 
Pinellas County, Florida. 

19. WAIVER. The failure of either Party to require the strict performance of this 
Agreement, or the waiver by a Party of any breach hereof, shall not prevent the waiving Party’s 
subsequent enforcement of this Agreement nor be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 20. CONSTRUCTION AND INTERPRETATION. The Parties hereby agree that this 
Agreement is the result of good faith negotiations between the Parties and is entered into after 
having an opportunity to review, understand, and negotiate the terms hereof. No term contained in 
this Agreement shall be construed against either Party solely as the result of such Party’s role in 
drafting this Agreement or any individual term contained herein. 

21. ASSIGNMENT. Neither Party may assign or transfer this Agreement nor any 
obligation contained herein, without the prior written consent of the non-assigning Party, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

22. OFFER EXTENDED TO OTHER ENTITIES. The TOWN encourages and agrees 
to the COMPANY extending the pricing, terms and conditions of this Agreement to other 
governmental entities at the discretion of the COMPANY. The TOWN acknowledges and agrees 



that COMPANY will not be considered to have defaulted on or breached this Agreement by 
operation of Company’s contractual relationship(s) with or any provision of Services to, other 
governmental or private sector entities.  

23. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, including by means of facsimile, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, 
but all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. Photocopies, fax copies, and 
electronic copies of signatures shall be deemed as legally binding as original signatures.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed by their duly authorized representatives and will be made effective as of the date first 
written above. 

 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY   IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 

 

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________   

       Robert Howell, Mayor             Robert Duncan, Managing Director 

 

 

Date: __________________   Date: __________________     

 

 

 

 

By: _____________________________    

       Ana Cabezas, Clerk   

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT A: TASK ORDER TEMPLATE 

This Task Order is made on the _______ day of _______, _____ pursuant to the Agreement for 
Services (the “Agreement”) dated ___ day of ________, _____, by and between the TOWN and 
COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the manner set forth herein: 

 1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: _________________________________________________ 

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services:  

3) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services pursuant to the 
Agreement and the following:  

4) TERM: This Task Order is effective until ________________.  

5) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will each designate ____________________ as 
professional resources for this Task Order.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by their 
duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.  

 

TOWN       COMPANY  

 

By: _____________________________   By: _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT B: HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 

The Hourly Rate Schedule will be used as a basis for additional Task Orders added to the 
Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of June 2022. The rate schedule will 
remain in effect until December 31, 2022:  

The rates are subject to change each year and Company will provide an updated Rate Schedule 
each year. Previously approved and ongoing projects will not be subject to rate changes, any rate 
change will only impact future Task Orders that must be properly Executed.  

 

Managing Director       $ 175.00 per hour  

Senior Consultant       $ 125.00 per hour  

Clerk/Records       $ 90.00 per hour  

Analyst        $ 75.00 per hour  

Administrative Assistant     $ 50.00 per hour 

Professional Facilitator      $ 250.00 per hour 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT C: INTERIM TOWN MANAGER 

This Task Order is pursuant to the Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of 
June 2022, by and between the TOWN and COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the 
manner set forth herein:  

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: Interim Town Manager  

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services:  

Daily and Weekly Town Manager Tasks  

a) Manage Staff  
b) Bank Deposits & Make Change  
c) Sign Checks  
d) Website Updates  
e) Back up Servers  
f) Project Management and Update Meeting(s)  

i) Status of projects including additional Task Orders associated with Agreement  
ii) Decision points and management of scope and consultants  

g) Weekly Report  
i) Detailed status of projects provided to Council in written report each week  
 

Monthly Tasks  

a) Council Meeting Agenda Prep  
b) One to One Meetings with Council Members  
c) Attend Council Meeting d) Reconciliation / Bank Statement Review  
d) Departmental Performance Reviews  
e) Capital Projects Review  
f) Town Newsletter (with Town Clerk)  
g) NPDES and LMS Meeting Attendance  
h) Pinellas County City Manager Monthly Meeting  
i) Current Vendor Management  
j) Resident meetings (at request of Council Member)  
 
Work Schedule  

a) Two days onsite in Town Hall each week  
i) Upcoming office hours will be included in Weekly Reports  
ii) Length of onsite time will vary according to need  



b) One scheduled virtual day each week  
c) All other days are “on call”  

The Task Work is expected to average close to 20 hours per week, some weeks will have more 
and some less. The week before Council Meeting(s) and week of Council Meeting(s) have time 
consuming tasks (Agenda Preparation, One-to-One Meetings with Council Members and Attend 
Council Meeting). 

 

3) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services on a biweekly 
basis pursuant to the Agreement and the following:  
a) Hours will be billed at $125/hour and tracked/logged in the weekly report  
b) For Billing Purposes, the “Work Week” will be Saturday – Friday  
c) Invoice for two weeks will be remitted Wednesday after 2nd Work Week.  
 
3) TERM: The Transition will begin shortly after execution of the Agreement and Task Order. 
Upon separation of Town Manager the Interim Town Manager will be sworn in.  

4) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will designate Rob Duncan as lead for this Task 
Order upon separation date of the current Town Manager. Additional COMPANY resources will 
participate as needed to complete required tasks.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. 

 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY              IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 

 

By: _____________________________   By: _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

EXHIBIT D: ACCOUNTING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT SOLUTIONS 

This Task Order is pursuant to the Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of 
June 2022, by and between the TOWN and COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the 
manner set forth herein:  

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: Identification and implementation of solution for Accounting and 
Code Enforcement services.  

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services:  

Accounting  

a) Outline various paths: 
 i) Internal hire  
ii) Outsourced bookkeeping / accounting services  

(1) Staff only  
(2) Turn-key solution inclusive of new software and staff  

b) Bring detailed options to Town Council and make recommendation  
c) Follow Town policies to implement chosen solution (items below if necessary)  

i) Develop Specifications for Invitations to Bid, Request for Qualifications or Request for 
Proposals as needed to secure needed solutions for Town.  

ii) Ensure procurement of all solutions achieved in accordance with Town Policies  
iii) Negotiate agreements on behalf of Town and work with legal counsel to ensure proper 

protections for Town exist in future agreements. 
iv) Solutions will emphasize best value to Town, documenting what revenue enhancement, 

cost reduction or efficiency improvements can be achieved.  
 

Code Enforcement  

a) Document the detailed need  
i) Current code, policies and procedures  
ii) Discussions with all Councilmembers  

b) Outline various paths  
i) Internal Hire manager by Administration  
ii) Managed by Police Department  
iii) Outsourced  

(1) Partner with other Government Agency  
(2) Partner with non-Government entity  

c) Build cost / benefit analysis for all potential solutions  
d) Bring detailed options to Town Council and make recommendation  



e) Follow Town policies to implement chosen solution  

i) Develop Specifications for Invitations to Bid, Request for Qualifications or Request for 
Proposals as needed to secure needed solutions for Town.  
ii) Ensure procurement of all solutions achieved in accordance with Town Policies  
iii) Negotiate agreements on behalf of Town and work with legal counsel to ensure proper 
protections for Town exist in future agreements. 
iv) Solutions will emphasize best value to Town, documenting what revenue enhancement, 
cost reduction or efficiency improvements can be achieved.  
 

5) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services on a biweekly 
basis pursuant to the Agreement and the following:  
a) Hours will be billed at $125/hour and tracked/logged in the weekly report  
b) For Billing Purposes, the “Work Week” will be Saturday – Friday  
c) Invoice for two weeks will be remitted Wednesday after 2nd Work Week.  
d) Task work is expected to be about 80 hours – Town will only be invoiced for actual hours.  
 
6) TERM: The work will begin shortly after execution of the Agreement and Task Order and will 
be completed ASAP as urgent needs of the community.  
 
7) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will designate Lisa Hendrickson as lead for this 
Task Order. Additional COMPANY resources will participate as needed to complete required 
tasks.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written. 
 
 
TOWN OF KENNETH CITY              IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 
 
 
By: _____________________________   By: _____________________________ 
 
  



EXHIBIT E: REVENUE ANALYSIS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
SOLUTION IDENTIFICATION 

   

This Task Order is pursuant to the Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of June 
2022, by and between the TOWN and COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the manner 
set forth herein: 

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: Revenue Analysis and Professional Services Solution 
Identification. 

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services: 
Revenue Analysis 

a) Review ACFR and Annual Budget 
b) Review of current revenue sources 

i) Legally available 
ii) Additional Capacity 

c) Comparative Tax and Rate Study 
d) Analysis & Evaluation of current Ad Valorem Base 

i) Taxable vs. Exempt 
ii) Value/Income 
iii) Parcel Tax Burden 
iv) Growth Projections 
v) Discussion of Annexations and Target growth 

e) Residential and Commercial Diversification 
f) Ad Valorem Supported versus Assessment Supported Activities 
g) Grants, Appropriations, Shared Services 
h) Investments 
i) Surplus Property 
j) Business Tax Receipts 
k) Forecasting and Relevant Policy 
Professional Services & Technology Assessments – Procurement when Necessary 

a) Build Comprehensive list of all current contracts and services providers  
i) Includes all professional services such as Legal, Engineering and Building 

Department, etc. 
ii) Includes technology services such as website, accounting software, etc. 
iii) Includes all other recurring / repeating expenses with a specific vendor 
iv) Includes range of “expected costs” associated with each service / solution 
v) List will be prioritized with input from Town Council 

b) Identify multiple options wherever possible for solutions to be offered to Town 
c) Develop Specifications for Invitations to Bid, Request for Qualifications or Request for 

Proposals as needed to secure needed solutions for Town. 
d) Ensure procurement of all solutions achieved in accordance with Town Policies 



e) Negotiate agreements on behalf of Town and work with legal counsel to ensure proper 
protections for Town exist in future agreements. 

f) Solutions will emphasize best value to Town, documenting what revenue enhancement, 
cost reduction or efficiency improvements can be achieved. 

4) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services on a bi-
weekly basis pursuant to the Agreement and the following: 
a) Hours will be billed at $125/hour and tracked/logged in the weekly report 
b) For Billing Purposes, the “Work Week” will be Saturday – Friday  
c) Invoice for two weeks will be remitted Wednesday after 2nd Work Week. 
d) Task work is expected to be about 240 hours – Town will only be invoiced for actual 

hours. 
5) TERM: The work will begin shortly after execution of the Agreement and Task Order and 

will be completed during current 2022 Budget Year.  
6) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will designate JP Murphy as lead for this 

Task Order. Additional COMPANY resources will participate as needed to complete 
required tasks.    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.  

 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY   IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________   

 

  



EXHIBIT F: ANNUAL BUDGET PREPARATION AND COMPLIANCE 

   

This Task Order is pursuant to the Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of June 
2022, by and between the TOWN and COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the manner 
set forth herein: 

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: Identification and implementation of solution for Annual 
Budget Preparation and Compliance. 

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services: 
Prepare Program Based Annual Budget 

a) Internal staff discussions 
b) Property appraisers initial estimate June 1st for forecasting.  
c) How are we ending the 2021/2022 fiscal year? What is in reserves?   

i) Data collection 
d) Draft template and populate with information gathered.  

i) Tie-in to Exhibit D: Accounting and Code Enforcement Solutions 
ii) Tie-in to Exhibit E: Revenue Analysis and Professional Solution Identification 

e) Create nexus to CIP 
Workshop(s) with Town Council (July/August - Professional Facilitation) 

a) Create a shared vision  
b) Prioritize programs 
c) Create consensus/buy-in/get direction    
Compliance 

a) Review of State Statute 
i) DR420 (select a tentative millage)  
ii) Voting requirements for rollback/proposed millage, etc. 
iii) Obtain E-Trim access to be filled out (Accounting firm)  

b) Determine ARPA funding connections 
c) Precise meeting advertisement two to three times with accurate dates/times 
d) First Reading 
e) Second Reading 
f) Annual Financial Report to be sent to the Auditor General 

3) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services on a bi-
weekly basis pursuant to the Agreement and the following: 
a) Hours will be billed at $125/hour and tracked/logged in the weekly report 
b) Professional facilitator will be billed at $250/hour while facilitating 
c) For Billing Purposes, the “Work Week” will be Saturday – Friday  
d) Invoice for two weeks will be remitted Wednesday after 2nd Work Week 
e) Task work is expected to be about 300 hours – Town will only be invoiced for actual 

hours. 



4) TERM: The work will begin shortly after execution of the Agreement and Task Order and 
will be completed during current 2022 Budget Year.  

5) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will designate Michelle Berger as lead and 
professional facilitator for this Task Order. Additional COMPANY resources will participate 
as needed to complete required tasks.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.  

 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY   IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________   

  



EXHIBIT G: INTERIM TOWN CLERK  

   

This Task Order is pursuant to the Agreement for Services (the “Agreement”) dated 8th day of June 
2022, by and between the TOWN and COMPANY, to provide the scope of services in the manner 
set forth herein: 

1) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The TOWN desires the COMPANY to provide those services 
generally described herein as: Interim Town Clerk 

2) SCOPE OF SERVICES: COMPANY, through its identified staff, agrees to provide the 
following services: 
Essential Duties 

a) Give notice of council meetings to its members and the public 
b) Attend all council meetings and keep a journal of the proceedings which shall be a public 

record 
c) Be the custodian of all the records, documents and papers of the town 
d) Be custodian of the official seal of the town, and authorize to affix the same to such 

instruments of writing as is necessary 
e) Attest all documents, contracts and agreements to which the town is a party as required 

by law 
f) Administer oaths as necessary 
g) Record and respond to public records requests 
h) Arrange for and supervise all town elections 
i) Prepare the agenda for all council meetings and post such agenda on the approved 

bulletin boards at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to each of said meetings 
j) Keep properly indexed books in which shall be recorded, in full, all ordinances and 

resolutions passed by the council. Ordinances shall be periodically codified. The clerk 
shall also keep the Town Charter in current form and shall enter all Charter amendments. 
Be responsible for the records retention program in accordance with state regulations and 
to destroy such records as authorized by the Florida Division of Archives History and 
Records Management. 

Work Schedule 

a) Onsite for all public meetings and as directed by Interim Town Manager 
i) Upcoming schedule will be included in Weekly Reports 
ii) Length of onsite time will vary according to need 

b) All other tasks to be completed virtually 
The Task Work is expected to be 10-20 hours per week. The week before Council Meeting(s) 
and week of Council Meeting(s) have time consuming tasks (Agenda Preparation and Attend 
Council Meeting).  

3) FINANCIAL MATTERS: TOWN shall compensate COMPANY for services on a bi-
weekly basis pursuant to the Agreement and the following: 
a) Hours will be billed at $90/hour and tracked/logged in the weekly report 



b) For Billing Purposes, the “Work Week” will be Saturday – Friday  
c) Invoice for two weeks will be remitted Wednesday after 2nd Work Week. 
 

4) TERM: The Transition will begin shortly after execution of the Agreement and Task Order. 
Upon separation of Town Clerk, the Interim Town Clerk will be sworn in.  

5) ASSIGNED RESOURCES: The COMPANY will designate Jocilyn Martinez as lead for 
this Task Order upon separation date of the current Town Clerk. Additional COMPANY 
resources will participate as needed to complete required tasks.    

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above written.  

 

TOWN OF KENNETH CITY   IMAGINE THAT PERFORMANCE, LLC 

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _____________________________   

 

 

 



From: Randy Mora
To: Robert Howell; Megan Zemaitis; Bonnie Noble; Kyle Cummings; Barbara Roberts
Cc: Peter Cavalli; Ana Cabezas
Subject: Kenneth City | DRAFT RFP for Attorney Services
Date: Friday, June 3, 2022 2:42:26 PM
Attachments: image001.png

2020-11 KC Retainer Agreement.pdf
DRAFT KC TOWN ATTORNEY RFP.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Please DO NOT CLICK
links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

All,
 
In follow up to my message from April 29 (below), attached here is a DRAFT RFP for legal services.
This will be on the agenda for the June 8 meeting to ensure you have an opportunity to provide
input before the RFP is published. Because this is a draft, some portions are still
bracketed/highlighted to be resolved before finalization.
 
As context, though I was not employed by Trask Daigneault LLP (formerly Frazer Hubbard Brandt
Trask Yacavone Daigneault & Metz) at the time, our Firm became counsel upon the prompt
resignation of the Town Attorney John Elias (around 2012). Upon Attorney Elias’ resignation, the
Town engaged the League of Cities’ services to identify an interim Town Attorney. Through the
efforts of the Town and the League, our Firm was identified as capable and willing to immediately
step in to assist on an interim basis. After a period of time serving as interim Town Attorney, the
Firm (through Jay Daigneault) and the Town entered into a two-year agreement for legal services in
August 2012. In August 2014, Mr. Daigneault proposed the Town continue its established
relationship with our Firm, but name me as the Town Attorney, which the Town Council approved. I
have been the Town Attorney since August 2014. The Firm’s contractual agreement has, with limited
revisions, been extended by the Town Council in a series of multi-year agreements since 2012.
 
This RFP will allow the Town to competitively bid for legal services while still engaged in the
budgeting process.

Respectfully,

Randy D. Mora
 

From: Randy Mora 
Sent: Friday, April 29, 2022 1:33 PM
To: Robert Howell <howellr@kennethcityfl.org>; cummingsk@kennethcityfl.org;
nobleb@kennethcityfl.org; zemaitism@kennethcityfl.org; robertsb@kennethcityfl.org
Cc: Peter Cavalli <CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org>; Ana Cabezas <cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org>; Mike
Vieno <vienom@Kennethcityfl.org>
Subject: Kenneth City | RFP for Attorney Services

mailto:Randy@cityattorneys.legal
mailto:howellr@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:ZemaitisM@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:nobleb@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cummingsk@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:robertsb@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:howellr@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cummingsk@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:nobleb@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:zemaitism@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:robertsb@kennethcityfl.org
mailto:CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:vienom@Kennethcityfl.org





















 


Page 1 of 13 


NOTICE OF 


REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 


RFP #2022-03 


TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES (TOWN ATTORNEY) 


FOR THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 


 
The Town of Kenneth City, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as the "Town"), invites Legal 
Services Providers to submit a written proposal to provide the Town with legal services (Town 
Attorney) in connection with its regular governing and operating activities. Proposals are 
solicited in accordance with the terms, conditions, and instructions as set forth in this Request 
for Proposals ("RFP"). 
 
Proposals will be received by the Town of Kenneth City, Florida, by U.S. Postal Mail or hand 
delivery to the Town Clerk's Office, Town Hall, 4600 58th Street North, Kenneth City, Florida 
33709 until Wednesday, July 6, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. Sealed proposals must be submitted marked: 
SEALED PROPOSAL – TOWN OF KENNETH CITY – RFP #2022-03: LEGAL SERVICES 
(Town Attorney), July 6, 2022. The Town’s purchasing policy shall govern whether a proposal 
will be accepted after the stated deadline. 
 
The RFP #2022-03 document may be obtained from the Town Hall, 6000 54th Avenue North, 
Kenneth City, Florida 33709, phone (727) 498-8948, from the [Town Clerk at 
cabezasa@kennethcityfl.org or Demandstar]. Questions concerning the RFP #2022-03 should 
be submitted in writing either by e-mail to Pete Cavalli, Town Manager, Town of Kenneth City 
at cavallip@kennethcityfl.org no later than, Wednesday, June 22, 2022. 
  



mailto:cabezasa@kennethcityfl.org





 


Page 2 of 13 


SECTION I 
OVERVIEW 


 
The Town of Kenneth City, Florida, is requesting proposals from independent legal service 
providers licensed to practice law in the State of Florida to perform the legal services 
described herein. 


The Town Council seeks a Town Attorney who is an exceptional communicator with proven 
local government experience and an exceptional understanding of the council-manager form 
of government. The ideal Candidate will professionally manage the duties and 
responsibilities of the office, and promptly provide accurate information to the Town Council 
and Town Staff. 


The chosen candidate will possess exceptional interpersonal skills, composure, 
organizational skills, a collaborative work philosophy, and the ability to work with a variety 
of diverse groups and issues. 
The Town Attorney should be skilled at building and maintaining positive working 
relationships with internal and external stakeholders and have the ability to be politically 
savvy while remaining politically neutral. The Town Attorney should have the skills and 
experience or the practice staff necessary to manage most municipal government legal 
matters, but also know when it is necessary to seek the assistance of outside counsel. 


The chosen candidate/principal assigned to the Town will hold a Juris Doctor from an 
accredited school of law and be licensed to practice law in the State of Florida. Florida local 
government experience is required. 


The Town is presently transitioning leadership and the Council is establishing its policy goals 
and appropriations for the coming fiscal year.  


  







 


Page 3 of 13 


SECTION II 
SCOPE OF REQUESTED SERVICES  


A. GENERALLY 
The Town of Kenneth City, which incorporated in 1957 is a small municipality located in 
southern Pinellas County. The Town us approximately .75 miles square and has a population 
around 5,000 residents. In 2013, the Town amended its Charter and transitioned to a Council-
Manager form of Government. The Town maintains its own Police Department and Public 
Works Department. The Town Attorney reports to and serves at the pleasure of the Town 
Council, which has four members, each elected to two-year terms, and a mayor elected to a 
three-year term. Given the Town’s small size and limited personnel, the Town Attorney works 
very closely with the Town Manager, Town Clerk, and department heads. 


In addition to the Town Council and the Town’s administrative personnel, the Town maintains 
a Board of Adjustment and a Planning and Zoning Board. The Town has retained the services 
of a special magistrate for the purpose of conducting code enforcement hearings. The Town’s 
Charter also contemplates the formation of a charter review board, though no such board has 
convened since 2012. 


 
The Town is seeking proposals from attorneys or firms qualified to provide Town Attorney 
related services encompassing comprehensive legal representation for the Town of Kenneth 
City, Town Councilmembers, Charter Officials, Executive Staff, and the Town’s subordinate 
boards. More detailed information on the Town government and the services that it provides 
can be found at the Town’s website: www.kennethcityfl.org. 
 
B. TOWN’S GOVERNING DOCUMENTS 
The Town Charter states the following concerning the Town Attorney: 
 


The town council shall appoint an officer of the town who shall have the title of 
town attorney who shall serve at the pleasure of the council. The compensation 
of the town attorney shall be fixed by the council. The town attorney shall advise 
the town council in all legal matters and shall perform any other duties 
prescribed by the Charter or by general law or the mayor and council. S/He shall 
be a lawyer admitted to practice before all courts of the State of Florida and the 
appropriate Federal District Court. Such attorney may or may not be a resident 
of the town. 
 


C. CONTRACT TERM 
The Town intends to contract with one (1) qualified firm to serve as the Town Attorney of 
record. The initial term will be for a period of three (3) years. The contract can be renewed 
without the need for competitive solicitation or negotiation upon written agreement of the 
parties. 
 
D. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The "basic services" required in this Request for Proposals ("RFP") include: 


1. The function involves primary responsibility for performing legal research, preparing 
opinions, advising Town officials, and, when necessary, conducting complex civil 
suits.  


 



http://www.kennethcityfl.org/





 


Page 4 of 13 


2. The Town Attorney plans, coordinates and directs the legal activities of the Town. 
Work duties require close coordination with the Town Council, officials from other 
governmental units, and the Town Manager.  


3. The Town Attorney shall serve as chief advisor to the Town Council, Town Manager, 
and all Town departments.  


4. The Town Attorney shall facilitate the orderly and legally sufficient procedural 
conduct of public meetings and proceedings. 


5. The Town Attorney shall represent the Town in all legal matters, including the bringing 
and defending of suits.  


6. Attends all meetings and workshops of the Council and other committees and boards 
of the Council as required. For reference, the Town Council’s regular meetings are 
held at 6:30 pm on the second Wednesday of each month. Meetings last approximately 
one (1) hour to four (4) hours. The Town Council occasionally holds Work Sessions 
on another Wednesday in the month. In addition, the Town Attorney is expected to 
attend Special Meetings, workshops and budget meetings as called and scheduled. 


7. Advises the Council and Town Officials in reference to legal questions; provides staff 
assistance, legal research and counseling.  


8. Drafts contracts, resolutions, ordinances and development agreements at the request of 
the Town Council or the Town Manager.  


9. The Town Attorney shall review and approve all contracts, resolutions, and ordinances 
generated by Town staff prior to consideration by the Town Council.  


10. Acts as co-counsel in complaints, suits or controversies for the Town if a special 
counsel or insurance defense counsel is employed.  


11. The Town Attorney shall represent the Town by presenting cases before the Code 
Enforcement Board or Special Magistrate.  


12. The Town Attorney, at the request and direction of the Town Council or Town 
Manager, may conduct investigations, compel appearances, and make reports.  


13. Prosecute on behalf of and otherwise defend the Town on all complaints, suits or 
controversies in which the Town is a party, absent an agreement with a third party to 
the contrary. The Town Attorney is responsible for prosecuting and defending the 
Town in civil action when no counsel is provided by liability insurance or when the 
Town’s exposure exceeds its insurance coverage. The Town Attorney is responsible 
for representing an employee or elected official of the Town when named in a suit as 
a result of their official duties.  


14. Keep the Town Council informed of legislation or judicial opinions that have potential 
impact to the Town by way of memorandum, including regular updates on Florida 
Legislative Session bills of concern and any recommended courses of action on the 
part of the Town  


15. The Town Attorney shall answer all Town Council and Charter Official initiated 
requests for information and advice in a timely fashion. The foregoing shall not be 
construed to mean the Town Attorney must initiate lengthy work requests at the behest 
of a single Councilmember.  


 







 


Page 5 of 13 


By submission of a proposal, the proposer certifies that he/she has full knowledge of the scope, 
nature, quantity and quality of work to be performed, the minimum requirements of the Town 
and the conditions under which the work is to be performed. 
 
E. QUALIFICATIONS 
The Town Attorney shall meet the following qualifications criteria: 


1. Graduate from an accredited law school in the United States of America. 


2. Must be a member in good standing of the Florida Bar and admitted to practice in all Courts 
of the State of Florida for at least five (5) years.  


3. The attorney(s) representing the Town shall be located in in Pinellas, Hillsborough, Pasco, 
Polk, Hernando or Manatee County on a full-time basis.  


4. Experience in the practice of city, county, or local government law. 
 
Preference may be given to candidates certified by the Florida Bar in City, County and Local 
Government law. 
 
F. SCHEDULE 
The anticipated project schedule, which is subject to change, is  


• RFP Advertised    June 10, 2022 


• Questions to Town Manager   June 22, 2022 


• Proposals Due to the Town   July 6, 2022 at 2:00 pm. 


• Council Discussion     July 13, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 


• Contract Start Date    TBD 
  







 


Page 6 of 13 


SECTION III 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 


 
Respondents are required to submit their proposals upon the conditions expressed in these 
instructions.  


A. RESPONDENT’S ABILITY 
It is the intent of the Town to award the contract for this work to a Respondent whose experience, 
skill, and financial resources are fully equal to the task of providing the required professional 
services. Upon request by the Town, any Respondent shall be prepared to submit an attested 
statement of his ability, financial status, and history.  


B. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE 
Decision on the acceptance or rejection of the various proposals will be made as soon as practicable 
after proposals are received.  


C. BASIS UPON WHICH PROPOSALS ARE SOLICITED AND AWARDED 
Proposals are solicited on the basis of the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP documents. Award 
of the Contract will be completed in accordance with the terms of this RFP.  


D. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 
The act of submitting a proposal in response to this RFP shall constitute an agreement that no 
assignment of any resulting Contract shall be made without the written consent of the Town.  


E. CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT 
The Town reserves the right to terminate the Contract under the terms of this RFP and any terms 
negotiated in any Contract.  


F. PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS 
The Respondent’s proposal shall be submitted as required by the RFP documents in accordance 
with these instructions. Completeness and attention to detail are factors in the evaluation of the 
proposals.  


G. REJECTION OF PROPOSALS 
The Town reserves the right to reject any proposal that it deems to be non-responsive to the 
requirements of the specifications.  
 
The judgment of the Town shall be final in determining the capability, experience, and ability of 
the Respondent to successfully provide the required professional services. Failure to convince the 
Town of such capacities shall result in the rejection of the response.  
 
The Town reserves the right to reject any or all responses and to waive any irregularity, variance 
or informality whether technical or substantial in nature, and to accept or reject any item or 
combination of items, in keeping with the best interests of the Town. 


H. COSTS INCURRED BY RESPONDENT 
All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of proposals to the Town, or any work 
performed in connection therewith, shall be borne solely by the Respondent(s). No payment will 
be made for any responses received, or for any other effort required of, or made by, the 
Respondent prior to Contract commencement.  
 
  







 


Page 7 of 13 


I. INQUIRIES AND ADDENDA 
Each Respondent shall examine the RFP documents. Any inquiries, suggestions, or requests 
concerning interpretation, clarification, or additional information pertaining to this RFP shall be 
made by Wednesday, June 22, 2022, through Pete Cavalli, Town Manager, Town of Kenneth 
City at cavallip@kennethcityfl.org.  
 
The Town shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any Town employee, 
representative, or others. The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby 
interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to 
this RFP, the Town will attempt to notify all prospective Respondents who have requested a copy 
of the RFP. However, it shall be the responsibility of each Respondent, prior to submitting a 
response, to contact the Town Manager to determine if addenda were issued and to make such 
addenda a part of the response 


J. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
The Candidate shall maintain in effect during the term of any Contract in connection with this RFP, 
and all extensions and amendments thereof, certain insurance coverage as set forth below, and shall 
furnish certificates of insurance, in duplicate form, before beginning its performance under this 
Contract. All policies except Professional Liability and Worker's Compensation must name the 
Town as an additional insured. All liability policies must be issued by a Company with a Certificate 
of Authority from the Florida Financial Services Council, Office of Insurance Regulation to 
conduct insurance business in Florida or a rating of at least B+ and a financial size of Class VI or 
better according to the current year's Best's Key Rating Guide, Property-Casualty United States. 
The Candidate shall maintain the following insurance coverage in the following amounts: 


• Worker's Compensation including Broad Form All States Endorsement Statutory amount. 


• Professional Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 aggregate. 


K. NO LOBBYING/NO CONTACT 
Contact regarding this proposal with any individual, Town Council Member, or employee of the 
Town with the sole exception being [Peter Cavalli, Town Manager or Ana Cabezas, Town Clerk], 
will be grounds for disqualification of the Candidate at the option of the Town Council. 
 
This limitation is in effect from the date of the publication of this RFP until a contract is 
recommended by the Town Council. The Candidate may respond to questions initiated by a Town 
Council Member once the contract is placed on the Town Council agenda. 
 
L. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 
A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a 
public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public 
entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a 
public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, 
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under 
a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 
the threshold amount provided in Florida Statutes 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 
36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list 
 
M. NO COLLUSION 
By offering a submission to the RFP, the proposer certifies the proposer has not divulged to, 
discussed or compared his/her competitive proposal with other proposers and has not colluded with 
any other proposer or parties to this competitive proposal whatsoever. 
 
 







 


Page 8 of 13 


N. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS 
A party responding to this RFP may withdraw their proposal at any time prior to the opening of the 
proposals. Any late request for withdrawal will not be considered. 
 
Requests to withdraw must be made in writing to the Town Clerk. 
 
O. GOVERNING LAWS 
Any contract(s) resulting from this RFP shall be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the State 
of Florida and the Town of Kenneth City. Venue shall be in Pinellas County, Florida. 
 
P. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE 
Each proposer shall include a disclosure statement with their proposal specifying any potential 
conflict of interest, real or apparent, that the firm may have due to ownership, other clients, 
contracts, or interests associated with the Town of Kenneth City. 
 
Q. REQUIREMENT TO COMPLY WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS 
The firm is required to comply with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. The firm shall keep and 
maintain public records required by the Town to perform the service.  
 
Upon request from the Town's custodian of public records, the firm shall provide the Town with a 
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable 
time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or as otherwise 
provided by law. 
  
The firm shall ensure that the records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the contract term and following completion of the contract if the firm does not transfer the records 
to the Town.  
 
Upon completion of the contract, the firm shall transfer, at no cost, to the Town all public records 
in possession of the firm or keep and maintain public records required by the Town to perform the 
service. If the firm transfers all public records to the Town upon completion of the contract, the 
firm shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements. If the firm keeps and maintains public records upon 
completion of the contract, the firm shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Town, upon request from the 
Town's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 
systems of the Town.  
 
IF THE FIRM HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE FIRM'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
[(ANA CABEZAS)] AT: 
 


(727) 498-8948; 
VIA EMAIL AT [CABEZASA@KENNETHCITYFL.ORG]; OR 


AT 6000 54th Avenue, North, Kenneth City, Florida 33709 
 
  







 


Page 9 of 13 


SECTION IV 
RESPONSE SUBMISSION, RESPONSE FORMAT & EVALUATION CRITERIA 


All parties interested in making a proposal to obtain this engagement must comply with the 
detailed instructions for submitting proposals. 
 
A. SUBMISSION PROCEDURES 
Seven (7) copies of the proposal (one for each member of the Town Council, plus the official 
file and staff), and one (1) complete copy in PDF format on a USB drive are to be submitted 
in a sealed envelope to: 
 
   Town of Kenneth City  


Attn: [Insert Name] 
   6000 54th Avenue, North 


Kenneth City, Florida 33709 
 
To prevent a proposal from being prematurely opened or from being opened by unauthorized 
individuals, your proposal should be identified on the envelope or wrapper as follows: 
 


SEALED PROPOSAL 
TOWN OF KENNETH CITY – RFP 2022-03: Legal Services 


July 6, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
The deadline for submission of proposals is July 6, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. No modification or 
addenda will be accepted after the closing dates stated above unless, in the sole discretion of 
the Town Council. it is determined to be in the best interest of the Town to do so. 
 
B. RESPONSE FORMAT 
All proposals must be typewritten. Clarity and completeness are essential. The Proposal must 
be signed by the individual(s) legally authorized to bind the proposing Firm.  
 
Proposals must be submitted in the format provided below, with each of the referenced sections 
addressed in full. Each of the sections described below must begin on a separate page, and each 
page must clearly state the name of the Proposer. Town reserves the right to eliminate from further 
consideration any proposal deemed to be substantially or materially non-responsive to the requests 
for information contained herein.  
 


1. TITLE PAGE  
Show the RFP subject, name of firm, mailing address, telephone and fax number, name of the 
contact person, email address and date.  
 


2. TABLE OF CONTENTS  
Each proposal shall include a clear identification of the material by section and by page number. 
 
  







 


Page 10 of 13 


3. LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING  
State your understanding of work to be accomplished. Also, state the name of the person who will 
be authorized to make representations for the proposer, their title, address and phone, fax number(s) 
and email address. State that the person signing the letter has been authorized to bind the proposer. 
The response must be signed by a duly authorized officer or agent of the firm. Such officer or agent 
must present legal evidence that they have lawful authority to sign said proposal and that the 
signature is binding upon the firm. Include a statement that the proposal is a firm and irrevocable 
offer for the engagement period.  
 
Identify the principal and any secondary representatives providing the legal services to the Town 
and acting as backup in case of absence. Provide name, title, addresses and telephone numbers. 
 
The letter of understanding shall include the conflict of interest disclosure referenced in Section 
III.P., above. 
 


4. CANDIDATE’S INFORMATION & CERTIFICATION 
This Section should include the type-written and completed Candidate’s Information Form 
enclosed with this RFP. 
 


5. FIRM’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE  
This section should include a brief history of the firm emphasizing the firm’s qualifications in 
general and specifically for this project. State whether your firm is local, national or international 
in size. Give the location of the office from which the work is to be completed. State the size of 
staff, number of professional staff and over-all experience of assigned staff for this project. 
 


6. PROPOSED ATTORNEY’S QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE  
Submit a statement of qualifications and experience, including a resume, for each attorney that will 
provide legal services under the proposed contract.  
 
Resumes should include the following information as a minimum:  
 


i.  Formal education. 
ii.  Supplemental education relative to government. 
iii.  Experience in municipal government: List other government entities with which 


the law firm now provides, or has provided, routine legal services and state in 
what capacity the services were provided (i.e. litigation, city attorney, etc.). 


 
The RFP response should include certificates of good standing for all attorneys expected to provide 
legal services for the Town. List any pending ethics actions against any of the Firm’s attorneys. 
Describe any probable cause findings, suspensions, reprimands, probations, disbarments or adverse 
actions against any member of your firm by the Florida Bar in the last ten years. 
 


7. COST/FEE PROPOSAL 
Include a cost/fee proposal with your response. Proposers are free to propose a primary and 
alternative proposals for cost/fee arrangements. In each version, all costs shall be included. At a 
minimum, please include the following and respond to each individually and in sequence:  


• If applicable, the proposed monthly retainer rate. If the RFP response proposes a 
retainer, it should be made clear which services are to be included in the retainer, and 
the rate for any services rendered outside the scope of the retainer. 


• The applicable hourly rate. If the applicable hourly rate is to vary by the personnel 







 


Page 11 of 13 


utilized, each of the proposed rates should be clearly stated. If the applicable hourly rate 
is to vary by the practice area or task, each of the proposed rates should be clearly stated.  


• Any proposed charges for travel shall be clearly stated 


• All proposed reimbursement requirements (copies, calls, filing fees, etc. should be 
identified) 


• Any additional information considered essential to the proposal may be included in this 
section 


 
C. EVALUATION CRITERIA & FIRM SELECTION 
The list of responsive firms will be forwarded to the Town Council. The Town Council will discuss 
the firms in an open and noticed public hearing, during which the Town Council will interview the 
responsive firms. The Town Council may require a presentation, or perform a background check. 
Individually, members of the Town Council may conduct an interview with the person proposed 
by the firm to be the Town Attorney. This is at the discretion of each Town Councilmember. The 
Town Council will make the final decision and appoint the Town Attorney.  
 
Criteria used in determining a firm’s qualifications include: 
 


A. Practical experience and knowledge of Municipal Corporate Law and Operations.  
 


B. Demonstrated Experience in representing Public Entities.  
 


C. Dedicated Time Commitment of the Primary Legal Representative.  
 


D. Ability to Communicate Effectively and Prepare Written Documents.  
 


E. Clarity and Responsiveness of Proposal.  
 


F. Fee Proposal 
 
The Town reserves the right to exercise its discretion, to waive minor informalities in any response, to 
reject any or all responses with or without cause, or to accept the response that in its judgment will be 
in the best interest of the Town. Further, the Town, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to separately 
quote any project that is outside the scope of this solicitation, whether through size, complexity, or 
dollar value. 
 
Negotiations may be conducted with the firm(s) whose proposal has been judged to best meet the 
needs of the Town. The Town reserves the right to request any additional information needed for 
clarification from any firm for evaluation purposes. 
  







 


Page 12 of 13 


SECTION V 
CANDIDATE’S INFORMATION 


1. Candidate Name: ____________________________________________________ 


2. Candidate’s Law Firm: _______________________________________________ 


3. Candidate’s Mailing Address:  _________________________________________ 


4. Candidate’s Physical Address: _________________________________________ 


5. Candidate’s Telephone No.: ___________________________________________ 


6. Candidate’s E-mail Address: __________________________________________ 


7. If a corporation, please provide the following 


• Federal Tax I.D. Number 


• A list of the corporate officers (names, addresses) 


8. References: Please provide a list of three (3) references of client organizations that the 
Candidate is currently representing or has represented. The Town may request information from 
these sources 
 
Reference No. 1 


• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________ 


• Client Organization Address: _______________________________________ 


• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________ 


• Contact’s Telephone Number: _______________________________________ 


• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________ 
 
Reference No. 2 


• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________ 


• Client Organization Address: _______________________________________ 


• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________ 


• Contact’s Telephone Number:_______________________________________ 


• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________ 
 
Reference No. 3 


• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________ 


• Client Organization Address:_______________________________________ 


• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________ 


• Contact’s Telephone Number: _______________________________________ 


• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________ 







 


Page 13 of 13 


 
CERTIFICATION 


1. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town of Kenneth City shall not be responsible 
for reimbursement of any costs incurred in the preparation of this proposal.  


2. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council may reject this proposal, in whole 
or in part, out-of-hand, for no reason, and that any such rejection will result in no obligation 
whatsoever on the part of the Town of Kenneth City or any of its employees and officials. 


3. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council reserves the right to reject all 
proposals and to accept any offer received, whether or not the offer is the lowest price offer received.  


4. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that any contract awarded herein shall not entitle the 
successful proposer to perform work for the Town of Kenneth City on an exclusive basis.   


5. I/We understand, acknowledge, and agree that the Town Council will require, as a condition of any 
contract awarded under this RFP, that the proposer shall provide proof of insurance in amounts 
acceptable to the Town. If selected for the award of a contract under this RFP, I/We agree to provide 
to the Town Council, proof of insurance in the form and amounts satisfactory to it. 


6. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that this RFP and the selected Firm's proposal may, by 
reference, become a part of any formal Contract the selected Candidate and the Town resulting from 
this solicitation.  


7. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that personnel essential to the continuity of any contract 
must be available throughout the duration of any contract that may be awarded hereunder unless 
substitutions are approved in writing by the Town Council.  


8. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Attorney shall provide legal services in 
accordance with this RFP, as they may be amended from time to time.  


9. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council and/or Town Manager will be 
responsible for monitoring day-to-day services of the Candidate delivered to the Town. The Town 
Attorney shall promptly report any conditions, transactions occurrences, events, situations, or 
circumstances encountered by the Candidate, which would impede or impair the proper conduct of 
the legal services provided.  


10. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that all proposals submitted shall become public record 
upon the opening of the sealed envelope in which the Firm's proposal is submitted.  


11. I/We understand, acknowledge, and agree that if selected, the Candidate will be required to keep 
complete and accurate books of accounts and records of its business and operations under and in 
connection with the contracted services. All such books of accounts and records shall be made 
available for inspection by designated Town persons or others as the Town might require.  


 
Signature of Authorized Representative: _________________________________________ 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
 
COUNTY OF PINELLAS  
 
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me, this _______ day of ___________________________.  
 
NOTARY PUBLIC:  _________________________________________ 
 


SEAL 
 







 
All,
 
In follow up to my brief phone calls with each of you, this e-mail is intended to formally document
my request that the Town publish an RFP for legal services, as soon as practicable, with the
understanding I do not personally intend to re-apply through this process.
 
My current contract (attached here) will expire in November of this year. As stated in my separate
discussions with each of you and in the e-mail thread below, moving this matter forward in the near
term will allow the Town to accurately budget for the contract costs of legal services while also
fulfilling the stated objective of the Council to engage in a circumspect review of the Town’s various
contracts for professional services. Indeed, had I re-applied or renegotiated with the Town, the costs
for legal services were likely to substantially increase commensurate with my Firm’s rates in other
communities and the demand for services within the Town. The need for accurate budget figures is
especially critical as this community balances its budgeting aims against the resources it intends to
allocate towards acquiring and compensating your next manager, and any other positions it
endeavors to fill.
 
Moreover, upon much reflection, I am keenly aware that I have been a consistent presence through
the various changes and challenges your community has experienced over these past eight years. I
sincerely believe that in each instance I have faithfully discharged my duties to the Town, providing
an informed and objectively neutral analysis for the Town’s consideration. Regardless, going
forward, I believe the Town and its Council would be best-served with a new personality and fresh
perspective on the delivery of legal services to the Town and its officials.
 
For the sake of clarity and avoidance of doubt, I fully intend to diligently discharge my obligations as
a charter officer to the Town until such time as the RFP process is complete or the Town Council
takes action to the contrary. I have spoken with the Town Manager and am working to produce
materials and provide insights that may be used to publish the contemplated RFP. The Town Council
will, of course, have an opportunity to substantively craft the solicitation documents before they are
published, just as it did through the 2021 recruiting process for the managers and clerk.
 
It has been and continues to be my pleasure to serve the Town of Kenneth City’s elected officials and
administration while working to preserve the public trust.
 
Respectfully,
 
Randy D. Mora, Esq., B.C.S.
 

Trask Daigneault, LLP
Harbor Oaks Professional Center
1001 South Fort Harrison Avenue, Suite 201
Clearwater, Florida 33756
Phone: (727) 733-0494



Fax: (727) 733-2991
Email: randy@cityattorneys.legal
 

CONFIDENTIALITY, DISCLOSURE, AND WIRING INSTRUCTION NOTICES
Confidentiality and Disclosure Notices. The information and all attachments contained in this electronic communication
are legally privileged and confidential information, subject to the attorney-client privilege and intended only for the use of the
intended recipients. If the reader of this message is not an intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, use,
dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in
error, please notify us immediately of the error by return e-mail and please permanently remove any copies of this message
from your system and do not retain any copies, whether in electronic or physical form or otherwise. Additionally, the
information contained herein may become subject to disclosure as a public record under Chapter 119, Fla. Stat.
Wiring Instruction Notice. FURTHER, WE DO NOT ACCEPT OR REQUEST CHANGES TO WIRING INSTRUCTIONS
VIA EMAIL OR FACSIMILE, PLEASE CALL TO VERIFY. IF YOU RECEIVE AN EMAIL CONTAINING WIRE TRANSFER
INSTRUCTIONS, CALL OUR OFFICE IMMEDIATELY TO VERIFY THE INFORMATION PRIOR TO SENDING FUNDS.
 

From: Randy Mora 
Sent: Monday, April 18, 2022 9:52 PM
To: Peter Cavalli <CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org>
Cc: Ana Cabezas <cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org>
Subject: RE: Kenneth City | RFP for Attorney Services
 
Manager Cavalli,
 
In follow up to the action item list below, as well as our brief conversations on Thursday afternoon
and earlier today, I respectfully request that the Town publish a request for proposals for attorney
services in the near future.
 
Getting the contract out to bid in the near future, as opposed to closer to the end of the contract
term in November, will allow the Town to address the Town Council’s expressed concerns about the
competitiveness of contracts that have not been put to the marketplace recently, while also allowing
the Town administration to responsibly craft a budget in the summer months based on immutable
figures.
 
I appreciate your attention to this matter, and am prepared to assist in providing you with assistance
through this process.
 
Respectfully,

Randy D. Mora, Esq., B.C.S.
 

From: Randy Mora 
Sent: Monday, February 14, 2022 5:01 PM
To: Peter Cavalli <CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org>; Ana Cabezas <cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org>
Cc: Jeremy Simon <Jeremy@cityattorneys.legal>; Robert Eschenfelder <Rob@cityattorneys.legal>;
Erica Augello <Erica@cityattorneys.legal>
Subject: Kenneth City | Attorney Action Item Review & Charter Officer Meeting Request
 
Pete & Ana,
 

mailto:randy@cityattorneys.legal
mailto:CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:CavalliP@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:cabezasa@Kennethcityfl.org
mailto:Jeremy@cityattorneys.legal
mailto:Rob@cityattorneys.legal
mailto:Erica@cityattorneys.legal


Roughly 45 days into the calendar year, I think it prudent to take stock of the various issues we are
handling and their progress. There may be value in speaking next week re: the prioritization of these
various matters. Otherwise, please advise if I have misapprehended or mischaracterized any of the
issues below.
 
CONTrACTS & PrOCUremeNT

raised by management
Solid Waste (Published Feb. 23, 2022 – Anticipated award date of April 13, 2022)

Current extension set to expire at conclusion of month, extension needed  from Waste
Connection (ref: discussion with I. Boyle)
Status – RDM awaiting input re: Cavalli calls with I. Boyle on Feb 12 or 13 for Waste
Connection extension and desired process going forward for pending RFP

Special magistrate (Published Feb. 8, 2022 – Anticipated award date of March 9?, 2022)
Status – Awaiting RFP responses from individual applicants, R. Eschenfelder (“RME”)
assisting with questions from Manager; Cavalli considering potentially extending RFP
response timeline, RME/RDM to assist with any related RFP addenda

Chief of Police
Employment Agreement (In Progress) – Status RDM awaiting draft agreement from Manager
Cavalli
MOU for use with PBA (In Progress) – Status RDM to circulate final draft by February 15,
2022

Accela Citizen Portal
Status – Town Council approved management to negotiate and contract with Accela re:
$60,000 contract; RDM awaiting procurement details for acquisition and proposed contract
terms from Cavalli

 
misc Contracts

Accountant – (Original contract entered into March 31, 2021 – Automatic Renewal Next
Month)

“Services will begin as of 3/31/21 and automatically renew annually with a starting monthly
contract amount of $5,6000 with an annual increase allotment of 3%”
Status – No action needed, absent contrary direction from Management to renegotiate or
otherwise go out to bid

Attorney (Two Year Term Expires November 2022)
Status – RDM to circulate proposed renewal for potential adoption in summer, absent
contrary direction from Management to go out to bid

Advanced engineering & Design, Inc. – (Original contract may require review, based on
previous management input)

Status –  No urgent action needed, absent contrary direction from Management to
renegotiate or otherwise go out to bid

BCr Computer Systems – (Original contract may require review, based on previous
management input)

Status –  No urgent action needed, absent contrary direction from Management to
renegotiate or otherwise go out to bid

Interlocal Agreement with Pinellas Park for Building Official Services (Original contract may



require review, based on previous management input)
Last known contract I can find is from 2012, which expired in December 2017, and e-mails
concerning a proposed draft for renewal that was circulated in October 2017, contemplating
a December 2022 termination.
Status – Secure through Town records final/executed copy of interlocal agreement and
determine if it in fact expires on December 11, 2022, as contemplated in the draft. No
urgent action needed, absent contrary direction from Management to renegotiate or
otherwise go out to bid

 
CODe eNFOrCemeNT

Status
RFP for Special Magistrate pending (see above)
Erica Augello (EFA) Assisting with reestablishment of process for directing violations for
prosecution to LOV court or special magistrate, as appropriate

 
LegISLATIve mATTerS

(PrIOrITY) election resolution – For use in March 2022 meeting
Status – RDM to prepare resolution and circulate by Feb 21 re: uncontested election

Comprehensive Plan review/revision (eAr Based Amendments, FLUe, FLUm, etc.)
Status –  Cavalli working with NR at Forward Pinellas re: proposed terms for interlocal
agreement/services, pending further review by RDM

Charter review - Description: There is no set schedule for reviewing the Town’s Charter. Section
9.04 provides that the Town Council shall appoint a committee for the purpose of revieing the
Charter and ordinances and submitting recommendations to the Town Council for any proposed
amendments of revisions of the charter and ordinance.  The Charter suggest this committee “may
be appointed at least once every five years after the adoption of this charter,” and the committee
would continue in existence for a period not to exceed one year from the effective date of the
appointment. If the Town Council cannot appoint 5 members, the council can itself serve as the
Charter/Ordinance review body.

Status: To my knowledge, the Town has not convened a Charter Review Committee since the
Charter’s adoption in early 2014. No urgent action needed, but Management may wish to
consider establishing a timeline for a Charter review.

Code revision – Cavalli authorized ongoing code revision
Status – RDM requests meeting with Cavalli to discuss particular code sections to be amended
(e.g. Sign Code (submitted 2017), Chapter 2 – Administration (submitted Feb 2019), Chp. 66
(Revision necessary to align to Chp 54), Home Occupation, etc.)

Personnel manual - On November 7 my office circulated a proposed revised draft of the
personnel manual (E-mail attached for reference). Once finalized we will need to adopt an
ordinance repealing the personnel manual from the LDC (two readings), and the resolution
adopting the proposed new personnel manual (1 reading).

Status –  Cavalli and Cabezas in ongoing reviews of circulated draft, results to be circulated to
RME and RDM

resolution No. 12-12 - Ken (Public Works) has indicated the fees set forth in the above-
referenced resolution governing bulk pick-up need to be revised

Status –  No action needed; Revision on hold pending terms of Solid Waste RFP



 
QUASI-JUDICIAL mATTerS

Board of Adjustment & P&Z
RDM to perform instruction on Wednesday, Feb. 16, 2022
Status – Hearings to be scheduled on pending applications following Feb 16, 2022 training,
based on Management understanding of present pending status

RDM believes application pending

(Variance) James Knoebel – 5701 44th Avenue

(Variance/Setback Issue) Paul Taylor – 5695 46th Avenue N (need to confirm if paid fee)

(Annexation) Rebos Club – 5639 54th Avenue N (need to confirm if paid fee)
RDM believes abandoned, seeking refund

Idlir Rexha – 6333 43rd Avenue, Kenneth City (paid $400)

Jason Ramsey – 5600 46th Avenue N.,  Kenneth City (paid $400)
 
misc. Administrative matters

Financial Analysis – B. Inzer provided preliminary report in Dec. 2021. Contemplated receipt of
reconciled financials for 2021 and audit.

Status/Suggestion – rDM advises to transmit most current available financial data with
commitment to follow-up once audit available in coming months











NOTICE OF 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

RFP #2022-03 

TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES (TOWN ATTORNEY) 

FOR THE TOWN OF KENNETH CITY, FLORIDA 

The Town of Kenneth City, Florida, (hereinafter referred to as the "Town"), invites Legal 
Services Providers to submit a written proposal to provide the Town with legal services (Town 
Attorney) in connection with its regular governing and operating activities. Proposals are 
solicited in accordance with the terms, conditions, and instructions as set forth in this Request 
for Proposals ("RFP"). 

Proposals will be received by the Town of Kenneth City, Florida, by U.S. Postal Mail or hand 
delivery to the Town Clerk's Office, Town Hall, 4600 58th Street North, Kenneth City, Florida 
33709 until Wednesday, July 6, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. Sealed proposals must be submitted marked: 
SEALED PROPOSAL – TOWN OF KENNETH CITY – RFP #2022-03: LEGAL SERVICES 
(Town Attorney), July 6, 2022. The Town’s purchasing policy shall govern whether a proposal 
will be accepted after the stated deadline. 

The RFP #2022-03 document may be obtained from the Town Hall, 6000 54th Avenue North, 
Kenneth City, Florida 33709, phone (727) 498-8948, from the [Town Clerk at 
town57@kennethcityfl.org or Demandstar]. Questions concerning the RFP #2022-03 should 
be submitted in writing either by e-mail to Pete Cavalli, Town Manager, Town of Kenneth 
City at cavallip@kennethcityfl.org no later than, Wednesday, June 22, 2022. 

Page 1 of 13 

mailto:cabezasa@kennethcityfl.org


 

Page 2 of 13 

SECTION I 
OVERVIEW 

 
The Town of Kenneth City, Florida, is requesting proposals from independent legal service 
providers licensed to practice law in the State of Florida to perform the legal services 
described herein. 

The Town Council seeks a Town Attorney who is an exceptional communicator with proven 
local government experience and an exceptional understanding of the council-manager form 
of government. The ideal Candidate will professionally manage the duties and 
responsibilities of the office, and promptly provide accurate information to the Town Council 
and Town Staff. 

The chosen candidate will possess exceptional interpersonal skills, composure, 
organizational skills, a collaborative work philosophy, and the ability to work with a variety 
of diverse groups and issues. 
The Town Attorney should be skilled at building and maintaining positive working 
relationships with internal and external stakeholders and have the ability to be politically 
savvy while remaining politically neutral. The Town Attorney should have the skills and 
experience or the practice staff necessary to manage most municipal government legal 
matters, but also know when it is necessary to seek the assistance of outside counsel. 

The chosen candidate/principal assigned to the Town will hold a Juris Doctor from an 
accredited school of law and be licensed to practice law in the State of Florida. Florida local 
government experience is required. 

The Town is presently transitioning leadership and the Council is establishing its policy goals 
and appropriations for the coming fiscal year.  

  



 

Page 3 of 13 

SECTION II 
SCOPE OF REQUESTED SERVICES  

A. GENERALLY 
The Town of Kenneth City, which incorporated in 1957 is a small municipality located in 
southern Pinellas County. The Town us approximately .75 miles square and has a population 
around 5,000 residents. In 2013, the Town amended its Charter and transitioned to a Council-
Manager form of Government. The Town maintains its own Police Department and Public 
Works Department. The Town Attorney reports to and serves at the pleasure of the Town 
Council, which has four members, each elected to two-year terms, and a mayor elected to a 
three-year term. Given the Town’s small size and limited personnel, the Town Attorney works 
very closely with the Town Manager, Town Clerk, and department heads. 

In addition to the Town Council and the Town’s administrative personnel, the Town maintains 
a Board of Adjustment and a Planning and Zoning Board. The Town has retained the services 
of a special magistrate for the purpose of conducting code enforcement hearings. The Town’s 
Charter also contemplates the formation of a charter review board, though no such board has 
convened since 2012. 

 
The Town is seeking proposals from attorneys or firms qualified to provide Town Attorney 
related services encompassing comprehensive legal representation for the Town of Kenneth 
City, Town Councilmembers, Charter Officials, Executive Staff, and the Town’s subordinate 
boards. More detailed information on the Town government and the services that it provides 
can be found at the Town’s website: www.kennethcityfl.org. 
 
B. TOWN’S GOVERNING DOCUMENTS 
The Town Charter states the following concerning the Town Attorney: 
 

The town council shall appoint an officer of the town who shall have the title of 
town attorney who shall serve at the pleasure of the council. The compensation 
of the town attorney shall be fixed by the council. The town attorney shall advise 
the town council in all legal matters and shall perform any other duties 
prescribed by the Charter or by general law or the mayor and council. S/He shall 
be a lawyer admitted to practice before all courts of the State of Florida and the 
appropriate Federal District Court. Such attorney may or may not be a resident 
of the town. 
 

C. CONTRACT TERM 
The Town intends to contract with one (1) qualified firm to serve as the Town Attorney of 
record. The initial term will be for a period of three (3) years. The contract can be renewed 
without the need for competitive solicitation or negotiation upon written agreement of the 
parties. 
 
D. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The "basic services" required in this Request for Proposals ("RFP") include: 

1. The function involves primary responsibility for performing legal research, preparing 
opinions, advising Town officials, and, when necessary, conducting complex civil 
suits.  

 

http://www.kennethcityfl.org/


 

Page 4 of 13 

2. The Town Attorney plans, coordinates and directs the legal activities of the Town. 
Work duties require close coordination with the Town Council, officials from other 
governmental units, and the Town Manager.  

3. The Town Attorney shall serve as chief advisor to the Town Council, Town Manager, 
and all Town departments.  

4. The Town Attorney shall facilitate the orderly and legally sufficient procedural 
conduct of public meetings and proceedings. 

5. The Town Attorney shall represent the Town in all legal matters, including the bringing 
and defending of suits.  

6. Attends all meetings and workshops of the Council and other committees and boards 
of the Council as required. For reference, the Town Council’s regular meetings are 
held at 6:30 pm on the second Wednesday of each month. Meetings last approximately 
one (1) hour to four (4) hours. The Town Council occasionally holds Work Sessions 
on another Wednesday in the month. In addition, the Town Attorney is expected to 
attend Special Meetings, workshops and budget meetings as called and scheduled. 

7. Advises the Council and Town Officials in reference to legal questions; provides staff 
assistance, legal research and counseling.  

8. Drafts contracts, resolutions, ordinances and development agreements at the request of 
the Town Council or the Town Manager.  

9. The Town Attorney shall review and approve all contracts, resolutions, and ordinances 
generated by Town staff prior to consideration by the Town Council.  

10. Acts as co-counsel in complaints, suits or controversies for the Town if a special 
counsel or insurance defense counsel is employed.  

11. The Town Attorney shall represent the Town by presenting cases before the Code 
Enforcement Board or Special Magistrate.  

12. The Town Attorney, at the request and direction of the Town Council or Town 
Manager, may conduct investigations, compel appearances, and make reports.  

13. Prosecute on behalf of and otherwise defend the Town on all complaints, suits or 
controversies in which the Town is a party, absent an agreement with a third party to 
the contrary. The Town Attorney is responsible for prosecuting and defending the 
Town in civil action when no counsel is provided by liability insurance or when the 
Town’s exposure exceeds its insurance coverage. The Town Attorney is responsible 
for representing an employee or elected official of the Town when named in a suit as 
a result of their official duties.  

14. Keep the Town Council informed of legislation or judicial opinions that have potential 
impact to the Town by way of memorandum, including regular updates on Florida 
Legislative Session bills of concern and any recommended courses of action on the 
part of the Town  

15. The Town Attorney shall answer all Town Council and Charter Official initiated 
requests for information and advice in a timely fashion. The foregoing shall not be 
construed to mean the Town Attorney must initiate lengthy work requests at the behest 
of a single Councilmember.  

 



 

Page 5 of 13 

By submission of a proposal, the proposer certifies that he/she has full knowledge of the scope, 
nature, quantity and quality of work to be performed, the minimum requirements of the Town 
and the conditions under which the work is to be performed. 
 
E. QUALIFICATIONS 
The Town Attorney shall meet the following qualifications criteria: 

1. Graduate from an accredited law school in the United States of America. 

2. Must be a member in good standing of the Florida Bar and admitted to practice in all Courts 
of the State of Florida for at least five (5) years.  

3. The attorney(s) representing the Town shall be located in in Pinellas, Hillsborough, Pasco, 
Polk, Hernando or Manatee County on a full-time basis.  

4. Experience in the practice of city, county, or local government law. 
 
Preference may be given to candidates certified by the Florida Bar in City, County and Local 
Government law. 
 
F. SCHEDULE 
The anticipated project schedule, which is subject to change, is  

• RFP Advertised    June 10, 2022 

• Questions to Town Manager   June 22, 2022 

• Proposals Due to the Town   July 6, 2022 at 2:00 pm. 

• Council Discussion     July 13, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. 

• Contract Start Date    TBD 
  



 

Page 6 of 13 

SECTION III 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 

 
Respondents are required to submit their proposals upon the conditions expressed in these 
instructions.  

A. RESPONDENT’S ABILITY 
It is the intent of the Town to award the contract for this work to a Respondent whose experience, 
skill, and financial resources are fully equal to the task of providing the required professional 
services. Upon request by the Town, any Respondent shall be prepared to submit an attested 
statement of his ability, financial status, and history.  

B. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE 
Decision on the acceptance or rejection of the various proposals will be made as soon as practicable 
after proposals are received.  

C. BASIS UPON WHICH PROPOSALS ARE SOLICITED AND AWARDED 
Proposals are solicited on the basis of the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFP documents. Award 
of the Contract will be completed in accordance with the terms of this RFP.  

D. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 
The act of submitting a proposal in response to this RFP shall constitute an agreement that no 
assignment of any resulting Contract shall be made without the written consent of the Town.  

E. CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT 
The Town reserves the right to terminate the Contract under the terms of this RFP and any terms 
negotiated in any Contract.  

F. PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS 
The Respondent’s proposal shall be submitted as required by the RFP documents in accordance 
with these instructions. Completeness and attention to detail are factors in the evaluation of the 
proposals.  

G. REJECTION OF PROPOSALS 
The Town reserves the right to reject any proposal that it deems to be non-responsive to the 
requirements of the specifications.  
 
The judgment of the Town shall be final in determining the capability, experience, and ability of 
the Respondent to successfully provide the required professional services. Failure to convince the 
Town of such capacities shall result in the rejection of the response.  
 
The Town reserves the right to reject any or all responses and to waive any irregularity, variance 
or informality whether technical or substantial in nature, and to accept or reject any item or 
combination of items, in keeping with the best interests of the Town. 

H. COSTS INCURRED BY RESPONDENT 
All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of proposals to the Town, or any work 
performed in connection therewith, shall be borne solely by the Respondent(s). No payment will 
be made for any responses received, or for any other effort required of, or made by, the 
Respondent prior to Contract commencement.  
 
  



 

Page 7 of 13 

I. INQUIRIES AND ADDENDA 
Each Respondent shall examine the RFP documents. Any inquiries, suggestions, or requests 
concerning interpretation, clarification, or additional information pertaining to this RFP shall be 
made by Wednesday, June 22, 2022, through Pete Cavalli, Town Manager, Town of Kenneth 
City at cavallip@kennethcityfl.org.  
 
The Town shall not be responsible for oral interpretations given by any Town employee, 
representative, or others. The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby 
interpretation, clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to 
this RFP, the Town will attempt to notify all prospective Respondents who have requested a copy 
of the RFP. However, it shall be the responsibility of each Respondent, prior to submitting a 
response, to contact the Town Manager to determine if addenda were issued and to make such 
addenda a part of the response 

J. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
The Candidate shall maintain in effect during the term of any Contract in connection with this RFP, 
and all extensions and amendments thereof, certain insurance coverage as set forth below, and shall 
furnish certificates of insurance, in duplicate form, before beginning its performance under this 
Contract. All policies except Professional Liability and Worker's Compensation must name the 
Town as an additional insured. All liability policies must be issued by a Company with a Certificate 
of Authority from the Florida Financial Services Council, Office of Insurance Regulation to 
conduct insurance business in Florida or a rating of at least B+ and a financial size of Class VI or 
better according to the current year's Best's Key Rating Guide, Property-Casualty United States. 
The Candidate shall maintain the following insurance coverage in the following amounts: 

• Worker's Compensation including Broad Form All States Endorsement Statutory amount. 

• Professional Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence; $2,000,000 aggregate. 

K. NO LOBBYING/NO CONTACT 
Contact regarding this proposal with any individual, Town Council Member, or employee of the 
Town with the sole exception being [Peter Cavalli, Town Manager or Ana Cabezas, Town Clerk], 
will be grounds for disqualification of the Candidate at the option of the Town Council. 
 
This limitation is in effect from the date of the publication of this RFP until a contract is 
recommended by the Town Council. The Candidate may respond to questions initiated by a Town 
Council Member once the contract is placed on the Town Council agenda. 
 
L. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 
A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a 
public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public 
entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a 
public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, 
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under 
a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 
the threshold amount provided in Florida Statutes 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 
36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list 
 
M. NO COLLUSION 
By offering a submission to the RFP, the proposer certifies the proposer has not divulged to, 
discussed or compared his/her competitive proposal with other proposers and has not colluded with 
any other proposer or parties to this competitive proposal whatsoever. 
 
 



Page 8 of 13 

N. WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS
A party responding to this RFP may withdraw their proposal at any time prior to the opening of the
proposals. Any late request for withdrawal will not be considered.

Requests to withdraw must be made in writing to the Town Clerk. 

O. GOVERNING LAWS
Any contract(s) resulting from this RFP shall be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the State
of Florida and the Town of Kenneth City. Venue shall be in Pinellas County, Florida.

P. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE
Each proposer shall include a disclosure statement with their proposal specifying any potential
conflict of interest, real or apparent, that the firm may have due to ownership, other clients,
contracts, or interests associated with the Town of Kenneth City.

Q. REQUIREMENT TO COMPLY WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS
The firm is required to comply with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. The firm shall keep and
maintain public records required by the Town to perform the service.

Upon request from the Town's custodian of public records, the firm shall provide the Town with a 
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable 
time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or as otherwise 
provided by law. 

The firm shall ensure that the records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of 
the contract term and following completion of the contract if the firm does not transfer the records 
to the Town.  

Upon completion of the contract, the firm shall transfer, at no cost, to the Town all public records 
in possession of the firm or keep and maintain public records required by the Town to perform the 
service. If the firm transfers all public records to the Town upon completion of the contract, the 
firm shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements. If the firm keeps and maintains public records upon 
completion of the contract, the firm shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Town, upon request from the 
Town's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 
systems of the Town.  

IF THE FIRM HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE FIRM'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
[(ANA CABEZAS)] AT: 

(727) 498-8948;
VIA EMAIL AT [TOWN57@KENNETHCITYFL.ORG]; OR 
AT 6000 54th Avenue, North, Kenneth City, Florida 33709 



Page 9 of 13 

SECTION IV 
RESPONSE SUBMISSION, RESPONSE FORMAT & EVALUATION CRITERIA 

All parties interested in making a proposal to obtain this engagement must comply with the 
detailed instructions for submitting proposals. 

A. SUBMISSION PROCEDURES
Seven (7) copies of the proposal (one for each member of the Town Council, plus the official
file and staff), and one (1) complete copy in PDF format on a USB drive are to be submitted
in a sealed envelope to:

Town of Kenneth City  
Attn: [Insert Name] 
6000 54th Avenue, North 
Kenneth City, Florida 33709 

To prevent a proposal from being prematurely opened or from being opened by unauthorized 
individuals, your proposal should be identified on the envelope or wrapper as follows: 

SEALED PROPOSAL 
TOWN OF KENNETH CITY – RFP 2022-03: Legal Services 

July 6, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. 

The deadline for submission of proposals is July 6, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. No modification or 
addenda will be accepted after the closing dates stated above unless, in the sole discretion of 
the Town Council. it is determined to be in the best interest of the Town to do so. 

B. RESPONSE FORMAT
All proposals must be typewritten. Clarity and completeness are essential. The Proposal must
be signed by the individual(s) legally authorized to bind the proposing Firm.

Proposals must be submitted in the format provided below, with each of the referenced sections 
addressed in full. Each of the sections described below must begin on a separate page, and each 
page must clearly state the name of the Proposer. Town reserves the right to eliminate from further 
consideration any proposal deemed to be substantially or materially non-responsive to the requests 
for information contained herein.  

1. TITLE PAGE
Show the RFP subject, name of firm, mailing address, telephone and fax number, name of the 
contact person, email address and date.  

2. TABLE OF CONTENTS
Each proposal shall include a clear identification of the material by section and by page number. 



Page 10 of 13 

3. LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
State your understanding of work to be accomplished. Also, state the name of the person who will 
be authorized to make representations for the proposer, their title, address and phone, fax number(s) 
and email address. State that the person signing the letter has been authorized to bind the proposer. 
The response must be signed by a duly authorized officer or agent of the firm. Such officer or agent 
must present legal evidence that they have lawful authority to sign said proposal and that the 
signature is binding upon the firm. Include a statement that the proposal is a firm and irrevocable 
offer for the engagement period.  

Identify the principal and any secondary representatives providing the legal services to the Town 
and acting as backup in case of absence. Provide name, title, addresses and telephone numbers. 

The letter of understanding shall include the conflict of interest disclosure referenced in Section 
III.P., above.

4. CANDIDATE’S INFORMATION & CERTIFICATION
This Section should include the type-written and completed Candidate’s Information Form 
enclosed with this RFP. 

5. FIRM’S QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE
This section should include a brief history of the firm emphasizing the firm’s qualifications in 
general and specifically for this project. State whether your firm is local, national or international 
in size. Give the location of the office from which the work is to be completed. State the size of 
staff, number of professional staff and over-all experience of assigned staff for this project. 

6. PROPOSED ATTORNEY’S QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE
Submit a statement of qualifications and experience, including a resume, for each attorney that will 
provide legal services under the proposed contract.  

Resumes should include the following information as a minimum: 

i. Formal education.
ii. Supplemental education relative to government.
iii. Experience in municipal government: List other government entities with which

the law firm now provides, or has provided, routine legal services and state in
what capacity the services were provided (i.e. litigation, city attorney, etc.).

The RFP response should include certificates of good standing for all attorneys expected to provide 
legal services for the Town. List any pending ethics actions against any of the Firm’s attorneys. 
Describe any probable cause findings, suspensions, reprimands, probations, disbarments or adverse 
actions against any member of your firm by the Florida Bar in the last ten years. 

7. COST/FEE PROPOSAL
Include a cost/fee proposal with your response. Proposers are free to propose a primary and 
alternative proposals for cost/fee arrangements. In each version, all costs shall be included. At a 
minimum, please include the following and respond to each individually and in sequence:  

• If applicable, the proposed monthly retainer rate. If the RFP response proposes a
retainer, it should be made clear which services are to be included in the retainer, and
the rate for any services rendered outside the scope of the retainer.

• The applicable hourly rate. If the applicable hourly rate is to vary by the personnel



Page 11 of 13 

utilized, each of the proposed rates should be clearly stated. If the applicable hourly rate 
is to vary by the practice area or task, each of the proposed rates should be clearly stated. 

• Any proposed charges for travel shall be clearly stated

• All proposed reimbursement requirements (copies, calls, filing fees, etc. should be
identified)

• Any additional information considered essential to the proposal may be included in this
section

C. EVALUATION CRITERIA & FIRM SELECTION
The list of responsive firms will be forwarded to the Town Council. The Town Council will discuss
the firms in an open and noticed public hearing, during which the Town Council will interview the
responsive firms. The Town Council may require a presentation, or perform a background check.
Individually, members of the Town Council may conduct an interview with the person proposed
by the firm to be the Town Attorney. This is at the discretion of each Town Councilmember. The
Town Council will make the final decision and appoint the Town Attorney.

Criteria used in determining a firm’s qualifications include: 

A. Practical experience and knowledge of Municipal Corporate Law and Operations.

B. Demonstrated Experience in representing Public Entities.

C. Dedicated Time Commitment of the Primary Legal Representative.

D. Ability to Communicate Effectively and Prepare Written Documents.

E. Clarity and Responsiveness of Proposal.

F. Fee Proposal

The Town reserves the right to exercise its discretion, to waive minor informalities in any response, to 
reject any or all responses with or without cause, or to accept the response that in its judgment will be 
in the best interest of the Town. Further, the Town, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to separately 
quote any project that is outside the scope of this solicitation, whether through size, complexity, or 
dollar value. 

Negotiations may be conducted with the firm(s) whose proposal has been judged to best meet the 
needs of the Town. The Town reserves the right to request any additional information needed for 
clarification from any firm for evaluation purposes. 



Page 12 of 13 

SECTION V 
CANDIDATE’S INFORMATION 

1. Candidate Name: ____________________________________________________

2. Candidate’s Law Firm: _______________________________________________

3. Candidate’s Mailing Address:  _________________________________________

4. Candidate’s Physical Address: _________________________________________

5. Candidate’s Telephone No.: ___________________________________________

6. Candidate’s E-mail Address: __________________________________________

7. If a corporation, please provide the following

• Federal Tax I.D. Number

• A list of the corporate officers (names, addresses)

8. References: Please provide a list of three (3) references of client organizations that the
Candidate is currently representing or has represented. The Town may request information from
these sources

Reference No. 1

• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________

• Client Organization Address: _______________________________________

• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________

• Contact’s Telephone Number: _______________________________________

• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________

Reference No. 2 

• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________

• Client Organization Address: _______________________________________

• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________

• Contact’s Telephone Number:_______________________________________

• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________

Reference No. 3 

• Client Organization Name:  _______________________________________

• Client Organization Address:_______________________________________

• Contact Reference’s Name: _______________________________________

• Contact’s Telephone Number: _______________________________________

• Contact’s E-mail Address: _______________________________________



Page 13 of 13 

CERTIFICATION 

1. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town of Kenneth City shall not be responsible
for reimbursement of any costs incurred in the preparation of this proposal.

2. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council may reject this proposal, in whole
or in part, out-of-hand, for no reason, and that any such rejection will result in no obligation
whatsoever on the part of the Town of Kenneth City or any of its employees and officials.

3. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council reserves the right to reject all
proposals and to accept any offer received, whether or not the offer is the lowest price offer received.

4. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that any contract awarded herein shall not entitle the
successful proposer to perform work for the Town of Kenneth City on an exclusive basis.

5. I/We understand, acknowledge, and agree that the Town Council will require, as a condition of any
contract awarded under this RFP, that the proposer shall provide proof of insurance in amounts
acceptable to the Town. If selected for the award of a contract under this RFP, I/We agree to provide
to the Town Council, proof of insurance in the form and amounts satisfactory to it.

6. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that this RFP and the selected Firm's proposal may, by
reference, become a part of any formal Contract the selected Candidate and the Town resulting from
this solicitation.

7. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that personnel essential to the continuity of any contract
must be available throughout the duration of any contract that may be awarded hereunder unless
substitutions are approved in writing by the Town Council.

8. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Attorney shall provide legal services in
accordance with this RFP, as they may be amended from time to time.

9. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that the Town Council and/or Town Manager will be
responsible for monitoring day-to-day services of the Candidate delivered to the Town. The Town
Attorney shall promptly report any conditions, transactions occurrences, events, situations, or
circumstances encountered by the Candidate, which would impede or impair the proper conduct of
the legal services provided.

10. I/We understand, acknowledge and agree that all proposals submitted shall become public record
upon the opening of the sealed envelope in which the Firm's proposal is submitted.

11. I/We understand, acknowledge, and agree that if selected, the Candidate will be required to keep
complete and accurate books of accounts and records of its business and operations under and in
connection with the contracted services. All such books of accounts and records shall be made
available for inspection by designated Town persons or others as the Town might require.

Signature of Authorized Representative: _________________________________________ 

STATE OF FLORIDA  

COUNTY OF PINELLAS  

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me, this _______ day of ___________________________. 

NOTARY PUBLIC:  _________________________________________ 

SEAL 












	Council Meeting Agenda 06-08-2022.pdf
	05-04-22  1. Special Workshop Meeting Minutes.pdf
	05-04-22  2. Special Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	05-11-22  Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Exhibit 1 Bob Daniels Resume v2.pdf
	Exhibit 2 2022-657 Procurement Ordinance (KC).pdf
	SKM_C360i22060110590.pdf
	1. Agenda Item -  Management Consulting Firms.pdf
	2. Agenda Item -  DMS Management Consulting Firms.pdf
	Attachement 1 - 80101500-20-1 Job Titles and Duties.pdf
	Attachement 2 - 80101500-20-1 Price Sheet.pdf
	Attachement 3 - 80101500-20-1 Contractors by Service.pdf
	Attachement 4 - 80101500-20-1 How to Use This Contract.pdf
	Attachment 5.pdf
	Agenda_Admin Asst.pdf
	SKM_C360i22060313550.pdf
	Agenda_Finance Specialist.pdf
	Finance-Accounting Specialist.7.16 post Daly review.pdf
	SKM_C360i22060315200 (002).pdf
	DUNCAN Kenneth City 060822.pdf
	Transition Services
	Executive Team
	Immediate Short-Term Needs
	Revenue Analysis
	Professional Services & Technology Assessments 
	Annual Budget
	Interim Town Clerk
	Interim Town Manager
	Slide Number 9

	DUNCAN Agreement - Kenneth City - FINAL.pdf
	COVER Kenneth City _ DRAFT RFP for Attorney Services.pdf
	2020-11 KC Retainer Agreement.pdf
	DRAFT KC TOWN ATTORNEY RFP.pdf
	PD Monthly Stats May 2022.pdf
	Kenneth City FD May 2022.pdf



